
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING AND AGENDA 
ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 16, 2020 
2:00 P.M. 

CITY OF DUBLIN COUNCIL CHAMBERS  
100 CIVIC PLAZA, DUBLIN, CALIFORNIA

Scott Haggerty, Chair – Sblend Sblendorio, Vice Chair – John Marchand – Jerry Thorne – Nate Miley – Ralph Johnson – Ayn Wieskamp, 
David Haubert, Alternate – Richard Valle, Alternate – Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate – Tom Pico, Alternate 

On behalf of the Chair, the Commission welcomes you to its meetings and your interest is appreciated. If you 
wish to speak to a matter on the agenda, please complete a Speakers Card and submit it to staff. When 
your name is announced, please come forward and give your name and address, and state your comments 
or questions. If you wish to speak on a matter not on the agenda, please wait until the Chair calls for Public 
Comment. Speakers may have a time limitation imposed at the discretion of the Chair. Alameda LAFCO 
meetings are wheelchair accessible. Call (510) 208-4949 (voice) or (510) 834-6754 (TDD) to request a sign-
language interpreter. Five working days’ notice is required. 

Only those issues which are brought up at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the LAFCO Commissioners at or prior to the hearing, may be raised in any legal 
challenge to the actions taken by the Commission. 

1. 2:00 P.M. – Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance

2. Roll Call

3. Service Recognition of LAFCO Analyst Theresa Rude-Smith and Commission Clerk Sandy Hou
for their distinguished service ahead of their retirements.

4. Adjourn to Closed Session – Public Employee Performance Evaluation of Executive Officer

5. Public Comment:  Anyone from the audience may address the Commission on any matter not listed on
the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Alameda LAFCO.  The Commission cannot act upon
matters not appearing on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes.

6. Consent Items
a. Approval of Meeting Minutes: November 14, 2019 Regular Meeting
b. Approval of Meeting Minutes: December 16, 2019 Special Meeting

7. Budget Update for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 and First Quarter Report (Regular) – The Commission
will review a report comparing budgeted to actual transactions for fiscal year 2019-2020 through the
second quarter. Alameda LAFCO is on pace to finish the fiscal year with a balanced budget. This

cal Age c  Form  C mm

1



ALAMEDA LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 4 

 

 

includes a $180,000 fund balance applied to offset agency apportionments. The report is being presented 
to the Commission to accept and file and to provide direction to staff as needed.  
 
LAFCO Staff Recommendation:  Accept and file the report as presented. 
 

8.  City of Alameda Healthcare District | Report (Regular) – The Alameda Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCO) will receive a status update and report from the City of Alameda Healthcare 
District as requested by the Commission at its May 9, 2019 meeting. The report is being presented for 
information only at this time with subsequent action, if needed, to be taken at a later date.  
 
LAFCO Staff Recommendation:  Accept and file the report as presented and provide direction to staff 
as needed.  
 

9.  Protest Hearing Results | Annexation of the City of Albany to the Alameda County Mosquito 
Abatement District (Public Hearing) – The Commission will receive the results of the protest hearing 
conducted for the annexation of the City of Albany to the Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District 
(ACMAD). The noticed hearing was held by the Executive Officer on Wednesday, January 8, 2020.  The 
number of protests received did not reach the threshold to either terminate the annexation proposal or 
subject the proposal to an election. The Commission’s approval to transfer mosquito control services and 
responsibilities to the affected territory will be ordered once all terms are satisfied. Staff recommends 
the Commission adopt a draft resolution ordering the annexation without an election. 
 
LAFCO Staff Recommendation: Adopt the draft resolution ordering the annexation. 
 

10.  Proposed Out of Area Service Agreement | 27398 Fairview Avenue to the City of Hayward (Public 
Hearing) – The Commission will consider an out of area service agreement filed by the City of Hayward 
requesting approval to extend public wastewater services outside of its jurisdictional boundary to one 
affected lot located at 27398 Fairview Avenue in the unincorporated community of Fairview. The 
affected territory as submitted is developed with a single-family residence on one legal lot. The purpose 
of the proposal is a response to a failing septic system and potential health and safety hazard by 
extending public wastewater services to the affected territory. Staff recommends approval of the 
proposal with standard terms.  
 
LAFCO Staff Recommendation: Adopt the draft resolution approving the out of area service agreement 
of 27398 Fairview Avenue with the City of Hayward. 
 

11.  Proposed Out of Area Service Agreement | 354 Virginia Way to the City of Pleasanton (Public 
Hearing) – The Commission will consider an out of area service agreement filed by the City of 
Pleasanton requesting approval to extend public wastewater services outside of its jurisdictional 
boundary to one affected lot located at 354 Virginia Way in the unincorporated community of Remen 
Tract. The affected territory as submitted is developed with a single-family residence on one legal lot. 
The purpose of the proposal is a response to a failing septic system and potential health and safety 
hazard by extending public wastewater services to the affected territory. Staff recommends approval of 
the proposal with standard terms. 
 
LAFCO Staff Recommendation: Adopt the draft resolution approving the out of area service agreement 
of 354 Virginia Way with the City of Pleasanton. 
 
 

2



ALAMEDA LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 4 

 

 

 
12. C Proposed Out of Area Service Agreement | 280 Oak Lane to the City of Pleasanton (Public Hearing) 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider an out of area service 
agreement filed by the City of Pleasanton requesting approval to extend public water services outside of 
its jurisdictional boundary to one affected lot located at 280 Oak Lane in the unincorporated area of 
Alameda County. The affected territory as submitted is developed with a single-family residence on one 
legal lot. The purpose of the proposal is to establish a public water connection to the affected territory. 
Staff recommends approval of the proposal with standard terms.  
 
LAFCO Staff Recommendation: Adopt the draft resolution approving the out of area service agreement 
of 280 Oak Lane with the City of Pleasanton. 
 

13.  Progress Report | Municipal Service Review on Water, Wastewater, Flood Control and 
Stormwater Services (Regular) – The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will 
receive a progress report from QK Associates on its countywide municipal service review for water, 
wastewater, flood control and stormwater services. The presentation will provide an update on work to 
date and outline on a completion deadline. The report is being presented for Commission discussion and 
feedback. A PowerPoint presentation will be provided at the time of the regular meeting. 
 
LAFCO Staff Recommendation: Provide direction to staff as needed.  
 

14.  Matters Initiated by Members of the Commission 
 

15.  Informational Items 
a. Current and Pending Proposals 
b. Progress Report on Work Plan 
c. CALAFCO Letter 

 
16. 1

5
. 

Adjournment of Regular Meeting 

17.  
 

Next Meetings of the Commission 

Policy and Budget Committee Meeting 
Thursday, February 6, 2020 at 2:00 pm at City of Dublin, 100 Civic Plaza, Dublin, CA  

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, March 12, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. at Castro Valley Sanitary District, 21040 Marshall St, 
Castro Valley, CA 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3



ALAMEDA LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 
 

DISCLOSURE OF BUSINESS OR CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS TO COMMISSIONERS 
  

Government Code Section 84308 requires that a Commissioner (regular or alternate) disqualify herself or himself and not participate 
in a proceeding involving an "entitlement for use" application if, within the last twelve months, the Commissioner has received $250 or 
more in business or campaign contributions from an applicant, an agent of an applicant, or any financially interested person who 
actively supports or opposes a decision on the matter. A LAFCo decision approving a proposal (e.g., for an annexation) will often be an 
"entitlement for use" within the meaning of Section 84308.  Sphere of Influence determinations are exempt under Government Code Section   
84308. 
 
If you are an applicant or an agent of an applicant on such a matter to be heard by the Commission and if you have made business or 
campaign contributions totaling $250 or more to any Commissioner in the past twelve months, Section 84308(d) requires that you disclose 
that fact for the official record of the proceeding. The disclosure of any such contribution (including the amount of the contribution and the 
name of the recipient Commissioner) must be made either: l) In writing and delivered to the Secretary of the Commission prior to the hearing 
on the matter, or 2) By oral declaration made at the time the hearing on the matter is opened. Contribution disclosure forms are available at 
the meeting for anyone who prefers to disclose contributions in writing. 
 
Pursuant to GC Section 84308, if you wish to participate in the above proceedings, you or your agent are prohibited from making a campaign 
contribution of $250 or more to any Commissioner. This prohibition begins on the date you begin to actively support or oppose an application 
before LAFCO and continues until 3 months after a final decision is rendered by LAFCO.  If you or your agent have made a contribution 
of $250 or more to any Commissioner during the 12 months preceding the decision, in the proceeding that Commissioner must disqualify 
himself or herself from the decision. However, disqualification is not required if the Commissioner returns that campaign contribution within 
30 days of learning both about the contribution and the fact that you are a participant in the proceedings. Separately, any person with a 
disability under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) may receive a copy of the agenda or a copy of all the documents constituting the 
agenda packet for a meeting upon request. Any person with a disability covered under the ADA may also request a disability-related 
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in a public meeting. Please contact the LAFCO 
office at least three (3) working days prior to the meeting for any requested arrangements or accommodations. 

 
Alameda LAFCO 
Administrative Office 
1221 Oak Street, 
Suite555 Oakland, 
California 94612 
T: 510.272.3784 
W: acgov.org/lafco

4



 

 

SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

City of Dublin Council Chambers, 100 Civic Drive, Dublin, CA  
 

November 14, 2019 
 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

Chair Haggerty called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m.  The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 

2. Roll Call.   

 Roll was called. A quorum was present of the following commissioners: 

County Members:   Scott Haggerty and Nate Miley (arrived 2:16, item 7) 
City Members:  John Marchand, Jerry Thorne and alternate David Haubert 
Special District Members:  Ayn Wieskamp and Ralph Johnson 
Public Members:   Sblend Sblendorio and alternate Tom Pico 

Not Present: Alternate County Member Richard Valle and alternate Special District Member 
Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold 

Staff present:  Rachel Jones, Executive Officer; Theresa Rude, Analyst; Andrew Massey, Legal 
Counsel; and Sandy Hou, Clerk 

 
3. Public Comment 

 Chair Haggerty invited members in the audience to address the Commission on any matter not 
listed on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Commission.  There were no comments. 

   

4. Consent Items 

Meeting Minutes of September 12, 2019 Regular Meeting  
  
 Upon motion by Commissioner Marchand, second by Commissioner Wieskamp, item approved. 
 

AYES:  6 (Haggerty, Johnson, Marchand, Sblendorio, Thorne, Wieskamp) 
 NOES:  0 
 ABSENT:  1 (Miley)  
 ABSTAIN:  0 
 
5. Budget Update for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 and First Quarter Report (Regular)    
   
 Staff provided summary of written report, noting that Alameda LAFCO is on pace to finish the 

fiscal year with a balanced budget. 
 
 Commissioner Thorne motioned, Commissioner Sblendorio seconded to accept and file the report.  

Motion passed. 
 

AYES:  6 (Haggerty, Johnson, Marchand, Sblendorio, Thorne, Wieskamp) 
 NOES:  0 
 ABSENT:  1 (Miley)  
 ABSTAIN:  0 
 
 

5



 

 

6. Annexation of Dumbarton Quarry Regional Park to Union Sanitary District (Public Hearing)  
  
 Annexation filed on behalf of the East Bay Regional Park District to annex approximately 91.01 

acres of territory located within the City of Fremont to the Union Sanitary District in order to 
provide wastewater services in support of the future Dumbarton Quarry Regional Park restrooms, 
shower facilities, and laundry facility. 

 
 Staff provided summary of written report.  She noted that if approved an addendum would be added 

to the mitigated negative declaration. There were no questions or discussion. 
 
 Upon motion by Commissioner Sblendorio, second by Commissioner Wieskamp the annexation 

was approved per staff’s recommendation. 
  

AYES:  6 (Haggerty, Johnson, Marchand, Sblendorio, Thorne, Wieskamp) 
 NOES:  0 
 ABSENT:  1 (Miley)  
 ABSTAIN:  0 
 
7. Annexation of the City of Albany to the Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District 

(Public Hearing) 
 
 Annexation proposal from the Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District (ACMAD) to annex 

the entire City of Albany into the District in order to create a countywide mosquito abatement 
district covering all cities within the County of Alameda to streamline essential public health 
services. 

 
 Staff gave a summary of the written report. LAFCO Counsel pointed out that in its consideration 

of the proposed annexation, per LAFCO law, the Commission should give great weight to the fact 
that the Albany City Council had submitted a letter in opposition of the annexation. 

 
 Upon receiving motion & second from Commissioners Wieskamp and Johnson, Chair Haggerty 

opened the Public Hearing.  The following speakers offered comments: 
 

• Ryan Clausnitzer, General Manager of the Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District, 
summarized the key reasons for the District’s proposal. He responded to 
questions/comments from the Commission, providing historical background on why 
Albany has not been included in the district and how the district could provide cost efficient 
mosquito services in Albany. 

• Rochelle Nason, Mayor of City of Albany, spoke in opposition of the proposal, noting that 
the City is happy with the current arrangement of having the Alameda County Vector 
Control provide Albany’s minimal mosquito abatement services. 

• Amy Shrago, on behalf of Supervisor Keith Carson, spoke in opposition to the proposal, 
and noted that the property owners do pay for vector control services that includes a small 
portion for mosquito abatement. 

• Robert Gay, Chief of Environmental Health for Alameda County Vector Control, spoke in 
opposition to the proposal. 

• Subru Bhat, resident of Union City and member of the Alameda Public Health Commission 
spoke in support of the annexation and expressed that both districts need to work together. 

• Jan O. Washburn, citing his past experience in mosquito research at UC Berkeley and his 
24 years of experience serving on the board of the ACMAD, spoke in support of the 
annexation. 

6



 

 

• Joe Galligan, President of San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control spoke in support 
of the annexation. 

Upon motion and second by commissioners Sblendorio and Johnson, the hearing was closed. 
 

Commissioner Marchand noted that the proposed annexation would accomplish more efficient 
delivery of services, something that LAFCOs are charged with ensuring. 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Sblendorio, second by Commissioner Wieskamp the annexation 
was approved per staff’s recommendation. 

  
AYES:  6 (Johnson, Marchand, Miley, Sblendorio, Thorne, Wieskamp) 

 NOES:  1 (Haggerty) 
 ABSENT:  0 
 ABSTAIN:  0 
 
8. Update and Report on Priority Conservation Areas (Regular) - A Report back to the 

Commission from the September 12, 2019 regular meeting. 
 
 Staff summarized the written report, noting that she was no longer recommending the Commission 

consider adding to its mandatory factors to review when reviewing a change of organization if the 
property is located within a high priority conservation area because such review is already included 
when the Commission is considering the consistency of a regional transportation plan. 

 
Upon motion by Commissioner Marchand, second by Commissioner Wieskamp the report was 
accepted. 

  
AYES:  7 (Haggerty, Johnson, Marchand, Miley, Sblendorio, Thorne, Wieskamp) 

 NOES:  0 
 ABSENT:  0 
 ABSTAIN:  0 
 
9. Report on Attendance at the 2019 CALAFCO Annual Conference (Regular) 
  
 Commissioners Sblendorio, Johnson and Vonheeder-Leopold attended the conference along with 

Executive Officer Jones.  Ms. Jones provided a brief report on some highlights of the conference 
and also noted that Commissioner Sblendorio had done an excellent job as a panelist on a session 
entitled “How to Lead your LAFCO in the Next Decade.”  Commissioner Johnson offered remarks 
about the Mobile Workshop that included a visit to the Port of West Sacramento and hearing from 
the Mayor of West Sacramento about the unique relationship between the City and the Port. 
 

10. Matters Initiated by Members of the Commission 
  
 There were none. 
 
11. Informational Items   Staff offered brief remarks on the following items. 

a. Current and Pending Proposals   
b. Progress Report on Work Plan  
c. Legislative Report  
d. CALAFCO Annual Report  

12.  Adjournment of Regular Meeting 
 
 Chair Haggerty adjourned the meeting at 3:10 p.m. 
 

7



 

 

13. Next Meetings of the Commission 

 Policy & Budget Committee 
 Thursday, December 5, 2019 @ 2:00 p.m. at City of Dublin, 100 Civic Plaza, Dublin, CA 

(subsequently canceled) 

 Regular Meeting 
 Thursday, January 16, 2020 @ 2:00 p.m. at City of Dublin, 100 Civic Plaza, Dublin, CA 
 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 Sandy Hou, Commission Clerk 
 

8



LAFCO 

Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 

  SPECIAL MEETING – STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP 

Martinelli Event Center, 3585 Greenville Rd., Livermore, CA  

December 16, 2019 

SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 

10:00 am - Call to Order - Chair 

Chair Haggerty called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.  The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

   

 Roll was called.  A quorum was present of the following commissioners: 

County Members:   Scott Haggerty 

City Members:  John Marchand, Jerry Thorne and alternate David Haubert 

Special District Members:  Ayn Wieskamp, Ralph Johnson, and alternate Vonheeder-Leopold 

Public Members:   Sblend Sblendorio and alternate Tom Pico 

Not Present:  County Member Nate Miley and alternate County Member Richard Valle 

Staff present: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer; Theresa Rude, Analyst; Andrew Massey, Legal Counsel; 

and Sandy Hou, Clerk 

 

Public Comment – Chair Haggerty invited members in the audience to address the Commission on any 

matter not listed on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Commission.  There were no comments. 

10:05 am - Business Items – Executive Officer 

a. Contract Extension with QK Associates – Contract expired on November 30, 2019 

Staff’s recommendation to amend existing agreement to extend time of contract expiration to May 

31, 2020, with no increase in amount of contract. 

M/S by Commissioners Marchand and Thorne to approve the time extension. Passed. 

Ayes: Commissioners Haggerty, Johnson, Sblendorio, Wieskamp 

Noes: None   Absent: Commissioner Miley   Abstain: None 

 

b. Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Alameda LAFCO and Community 

Development Agency (CDA) 

Staff provided summary of written report and responded to questions from Commissioners.  She 

confirmed that the interim space identified for LAFCO use beginning January 1, 2020 by CDA at 

224 West Winton Ave, Ste 110 is adequate for LAFCO’s needs.  She explained that LAFCO 

currently pays annually $10,000 for its space in the County Administrator’s Office and $27,000 to 

the County’s Information Technology Department (ITD). The cost of the new space will be $32,000 

and will include the space as well as ITD services, building security, printer & copier. Staff is 

working with ITD to identify its billing structure to LAFCO, with the intent of lowering the $27,000 

annual charge, since some of the charges will be included in the $32,000 charge.  Staff anticipates 

approximately a $10,000 reduction in ITD charges. 

 

M/S by Commissioners Wieskamp and Johnson to approve the MOU with the Community 

Development Agency for interim administrative office space until agreement for long-term space 

is executed.  Passed. 

Ayes: Commissioners Haggerty, Marchand, Sblendorio, Thorne 

Noes: None   Absent: Commissioner Miley   Abstain: None 

 

 

9



 

2 

 

c. Executive Officer Performance Review 

Staff’s recommendation for a change in the Commission’s bylaws to approve a proposed policy on 

performance reviews for the Executive Officer position.  Staff provided a summary of the written 

report, emphasizing the purpose is to give the Commissioners a structured process for providing 

input on the performance review of the Commission’s Executive Officer.  Chair Haggerty 

expressed a wish that the language in the bylaws be changed to allow for the Chair to have 

assistance in the process.  

 

Motion was made by Commissioner Marchand to approve the bylaw change, with the proposed 

wording edited to say “Chair and Chair’s Designee” rather than just “Chair” (Item 6.2, 2.c of 

proposed bylaw change). Seconded by Commissioner Johnson.  Motion passed. 

Ayes: Commissioners Haggerty, Sblendorio, Thorne, Wieskamp 

Noes: None   Absent: Commissioner Miley   Abstain: None 

 

10:30 am – 2:20 pm   STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP - Conducted by Bill Chiat 

     Following are summary notes from presentation/discussion.  

  

10:30 am LAFCO 101 Presentation – Bill Chiat 

 A big-picture overview of LAFCO’s existing, emerging duties and responsibilities, including 

a slide presentation.  

 

11:15 am Discussion of Organizational Goals and Accomplishments – Participants 

 Comments made include the following: 

Presentations from outside agencies have been helpful in increased understanding. Policy & 

Budget Committee looking at first report from consultants on the water study – which was just 

statistical – need more of an overview included. Lacking in responsibility as overall stewards 

– maybe need to provide more guidance (ex. Climate change).  Toxics in water of major 

concern. Educating the public very important. Climate change going to be expensive long term. 

Should be looking at agriculture in the County – know how much losing and how to encourage 

sustainability.  Have a regional discussion with San Joaquin and Contra Costa LAFCOs.  Do 

more to promote island annexations, do more outreach. Important to use the reserves – should 

have a fund balance policy.  JPAs – What authority does LAFCO have over them?  At least, 

know what JPAs there are – should be looking at them while doing the municipal service 

reviews.  Look at delivery of electricity. Relationship with wine growers in Tri-Valley, Tri-

Valley Conservancy.  What is LAFCO’s role in addressing homelessness? 

11:45 am How Does LAFCO Want to Be Known – Bill Chiat 

 Summary of comments by participants: 

Sustain and continue the quality of life in Alameda County.  Sustain agriculture and open space. 

Encourage efficient use of limited resources. LAFCO has leverage since it is independent, has 

authority to exist – is legislature’s watchdog of local agencies. Should be known as a facilitator.  

What are key areas that LAFCO should educate community about? Only forum where all 

agencies can come together.  

 Note:  Commissioner Haggerty departed the meeting at 11:50 am. 

12:15 pm Lunch 

12:45 pm Identify and Prioritize Key Objectives – Participants 

 What’s happening in agriculture – what are the needs – what can LAFCO do?   Need 

comprehensive study on climate change and how it will affect Alameda County municipal 

10



 

3 

 

services. Island annexations – have a plan over the next five years. Identify service 

“consolidation” opportunities.  LAFCO’s role in housing.  County unincorporated community. 

Water, wastewater, fire all tied to climate change. 

1:00 pm Next Iteration of the Strategic Plan – Bill Chiat 

 Staff indicated she would summarize the day’s discussions and present a draft of the Strategic 

Plan for 2020-2022 at the Commission’s March meeting as part of the Work Plan & Proposed 

Budget. 

2:00 pm Closing Comments and Reflections – Bill Chiat 

 Mr. Chiat expressed appreciation for everyone’s contribution. 

2:20 pm Adjournment – Upon motion/second by Commissioners Marchand/Johnson and unanimous 

approval, Vice Chair Sblendorio adjourned the meeting. 

  Next Meetings of the Commission 

  Policy & Budget Committee 

 Thursday, December 5, 2019 @ 2:00 p.m. at City of Dublin, 100 Civic Plaza, Dublin, CA 

(subsequently canceled) 

  Regular Meeting 

 Thursday, January 16, 2020 @ 2:00 p.m. at City of Dublin, 100 Civic Plaza, Dublin 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 Sandy Hou, Commission Clerk 

 

11



Blank for Photocopying 

12



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
1221 Oak Street, Suite 555 
Oakland, California 94612 
T:  510.272.3894 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

John Marchand, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Jerry Thorne, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
David Haubert, Alternate  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Tom Pico, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Scott Haggerty, Chair  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Richard Valle, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

January 16, 2020   

Item No. 7 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Budget Update for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 and 2nd Quarter Report  
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will review a report comparing 

budgeted to actual transactions for fiscal year 2019-2020 through the second quarter. Alameda LAFCO 

is on pace to finish the fiscal year with a balanced budget. This includes a $180,000 fund balance 

applied to offset agency apportionments. The report is being presented to the Commission to accept 

and file and to provide direction to staff as needed.  

 

Information 

 

Alameda LAFCO’s (“Commission”) adopted final budget for 2019-2020 totals $793,880. This amount 

represents the total approved operating expenditures for the fiscal year divided between three active 

expense units: salaries and benefits; services and supplies; and internal services. A matching revenue 

total was also budgeted to provide a year-end balance of $0 and with a purposeful aid of a planned 

$180,000 transfer from reserves. Budgeted revenues are divided between three active units: 

intergovernmental contributions, application fees, and investments.  

 

Discussion 

 

This item is for the Commission to receive an update comparison of (a) budget to (b) actual expenses 

and revenues through the month of December. The report provides the Commission the opportunity to 

track expenditure trends accompanied by year-end operating balance projections from the Executive 

Officer. The report is being presented to the Commission to formally accept and file and provide related 

direction as needed.  
 

 

          
          

Budgeted Expenses    Budgeted Revenues   Budgeted Year End Balance 

FY 19-20   FY 19-20   FY 19-20 

       

$793,880    $793,880    $0  

 

 

 

 

13



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 7 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

Summary of Operating Expenses 

 

The Commission’s budgeted operating expense total for 2019-2020 is $793,880. Actual expenses 

processed through the first six months totaled $174,917; an amount representing 22% of the budgeted 

total with 50% of the fiscal year complete. 

 

Actuals through the first six months and related analysis suggest the Commission is on pace to finish 

the fiscal year with $793,880 in total expenses and finish with an operating net of $0. A discussion on 

budgeted and actual expenses through the first six months and related year-end projections follow. 

 

Expense Units   Adopted    Actuals Percent Expended Remaining Balance 

              

Salaries and Benefits  483,581  103,352 21% 380,230 

Services and Supplies  
200,876 

 58,384 29% 142,492 

Internal Service Charges  59,423  
13,182 22% 46,241 

Contingencies 
 

50,000 
 

0 0% 50,000 

    $793,880   $151,103 22% $618,963 

 

Staffing Unit  

 

The Commission budgeted $483,581 in Staffing or Salaries and Benefits Unit for 2019-2020 with 

proceeds largely tied to changes in staffing levels from funding 2.15 fulltime equivalent employees to 

2.0 fulltime equivalent employees as well as existing retiree obligations. Through the first six months 

the Commission’s estimated expenses within the affected accounts totaled $103,352 or 21% of the 

budgeted amount. It is projected the Commission finish the fiscal year with an expenses total of 

$483,581.  

 

Services and Supplies Unit 

 

The Commission budgeted $200,876 in the Services and Supplies Unit for 2019-2020 to provide 

funding for direct support services necessary to operate Alameda LAFCO. Through the first six months 

the Commission’s actual expenses within the affected 14 accounts totaled $58,384 or 29% of the 

budgeted amount. Three of the affected accounts – Training (Conferences and Workshops), 

Memberships, and Planning Services – finished with balances exceeding the proportional 50% 

threshold with explanations provided below. In the absence of subsequent amendments at this time, it 

is projected the Commission will finish the fiscal year with an expense total of $200,876. 

 

▪ Training (Conferences and Workshops) 

This account covers the Commission’s training costs. The Commission budgeted $13,000 in 

this account for 2019-2020 based on recent actual trends. Actual expenses through December 

totaled $4,044 and can be attributed to registration costs for the 2019 CALAFCO Annual  

14



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 7 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

Conference held in Sacramento for October. Staff projects additional costs attributed to 

CALAFCO’s staff workshop to be held in 2020 and other CALAFCO University programs 

over the succeeding months.   

 

▪ Memberships 

This account covers the Commission’s annual dues for ongoing memberships with several 

outside agencies and organizations as previously authorized by the members. This includes 

CALAFCO and the California Special Districts Association memberships. The Commission 

budgeted $10,476 in this account for 2019-2020 based on recent actual trends. Actual expenses 

through December totaled $10,376 or 99.0% of the budgeted amount and tied to providing full 

payment of all budgeted costs.  

 

▪ Planning Services 

This account covers the Commission’s outside planning costs for applications, special projects 

and CEQA review. The Commission budgeted $5,000 in this account for 2019-2020 based on 

recent actual trends. Actual expenses through December totaled $3,854 or 77.1% of the 

budgeted amount. The costs are tied to the completion of recent projects from the planning 

firm Lamphier-Gregory.  

 

Internal Services and Supplies 

 

The Commission budgeted $31,690 in the Internal Services and Supplies Unit for 2019-2020 to provide 

funding for indirect support services necessary to operate Alameda LAFCO. Through the first six 

months the Commission’s actual expenses within the four affected accounts totaled $13,182 or 22% of 

the budgeted amount. None of the affected accounts finished with balances exceeding the proportional 

50% threshold. 

 

Summary of Operating Revenues 

 

The Commission budgeted operating revenue total for 2019-2020 at $793,880. Actual revenues 

collected through the first six months totaled $597,189. This amount represents 75.2% of the budgeted 

total with 50% of the fiscal year complete. A summary comparison of budgeted to actual operating 

revenue follows.  

 

Actuals through the first six months and related analysis suggest the Commission’s year-end revenue 

totals will tally at $793,880 and result in a balanced budget. An expanded discussion on the budgeted 

and actual revenues through the first six months follows.   

 

 

 

 

15



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 7 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

4 | P a g e  

 

 

Revenue Units   Adopted    Actuals 
Percent 

Expended 
Remaining Balance 

              

Agency Contributions  576,380  576,381 100% 0 

Application Fees  30,000  16,006 53% 13,994 

Interest  7,500  4,802 64% 2,698 

Fund Balance Offset  180,000  0 0% 180,000 

    $793,880   $597,189 75% $196,691 

 

 

Agency Apportionments 

 

The Commission budgeted $576,380 in the Agency Apportionments Unit for 2019-2020. This total 

budgeted amount was to be divided in two three equal shares at $192,127 and invoiced among the 

County of Alameda, 14 cities, and 15 independent special districts as provided under State statute. 

Alameda LAFCO has received all agency apportionments or 100% of the budgeted amount.  

 

Application Fees Unit 

 

The Commission budgeted $30,000 in the Application Fees Unit for 2019-2020. Through the first six 

months $16,006 have been collected in this unit. Staff anticipates – and at least for budgeting purposes 

– the account ultimately tallying at $25,000 and result in a year-end shortfall of $5,000. 

 

Interest Unit  

 

The Commission budgeted $7,500 in the Interest Unit for 2019-2020. Through the first six months 

$4,802 have been collected in this unit by the County Treasurer. Staff anticipates – and at least for 

budgeting purposes – the account accruing at the current rate and ultimately tallying at $7,500.  

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Accept and file the report as presented and provide direction as needed to staff with respect to any 

related matters for future consideration.  

 

Alternative Two:  

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction for more information 

as needed. 

 

16



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 7 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

5 | P a g e  

 

Recommendation 

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  

 
Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 
  

Attachments: 

1. 2019-2020 General Ledger through December 31, 2019  

17



z

Expense Ledger FY2016-2017 FY2017-2018 FY2018-2019

Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals           Difference  Percent of Budget
As of12-31-19

Salary and Benefit Costs 

Account Description 
60001 Staff Salaries - - - - 321,692 269,829 308,307 - - -
- Employee Benefits and Retirement (ACERA) - - - - 149,961 139,003 175,275 - - -

422,665 378,825 472,385 383,228 471,653 408,832               483,581 103,352 380,230              21.4%

Service and Supplies

Account Description 

- Intern 1,600 - 1,600 - 1,600 - 1,600 0 1,600 0.0%

610077 Postage 1,000 2,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 707 1,000 57 943 5.7%

610141 Copier 1,800 4,000 2,000 2,503 3,000 859 3,000 143 2,857 4.8%

610191 Pier Diems 6,600 7,000 7,500 7,300 7,700 5,700 7,800 3,100 4,700 39.7%

610211 Mileage/Travel - - - 89 200 1,308 1,300 426 874 32.8%

610461 Training (Conferences and Workshops) 18,500 12,000 20,000 17,171 20,000 11,153 13,000 4,044 8,956 31.1%

610241 Records Retention 1,000 1,100 1,000 1,000 1,000 300 1,000 195 805 19.5%

610261 Consultants 50,000 31,000 75,000 75,000 96,000 22,593 90,000 31,843 58,157 35.4%

610261 Mapping - County 5,000 6,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 595 5,000 0 5,000 0.0%

610261 Planning Services 60,000 75,000 25,000 10,000 25,000 4,121 5,000 3,854 1,146 77.1%

610261 Legal Services 30,000 50,000 40,000 35,000 40,000 26,210 30,000 0 30,000 0.0%

610311 CAO - County - Services 16,000 13,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 2,750 8,250 25.0%

610312 Audit Services 7,500 - 7,500 - 10,000 6,000 7,700 0 7,700 0.0%

610351 Memberships 8,157 8,157 8,675 8,774 9,000 9,026 10,476 10,376 100 99.0%

610421 Public Notices 5,000 2,000 5,000 2,000 5,000 2,363 5,000 1,349 3,651 27.0%

610441 Assessor - County - Services - - 5,000 - 2,500 - 2,500 0 2,500 0.0%

610461 Special Departmental 500 500 500 500 1,500 515 1,500 29 1,471 1.9%

620041 Office Supplies 3,000 1,500 3,000 500 4,000 592 4,000 217 3,783 5.4%

215,657 213,257 218,775 176,837 243,500 103,042                200,876 58,384 142,492              29.1%

Internal Service Charges

Account Description 

630051 Office Lease/Rent 3,200 3,200 3,200 3,200 3,200 3,492 25,000 1,325 23,675 5.3%

630021 Communication Services 3,156 3,156 3,218 3,218 3,878 3,878 3,950 995 2,955 25.2%

630061 Information Technology 17,726 17,726 18,081 18,081 21,578 27,068 27,373 10,779 16,594 39.4%

630081 Risk Management 2,633 2,633 2,686 2,686 3,034 3,034 3,100 82 3,018 2.6%
26,715 26,715 27,185 27,185 31,690 37,472 59,423 13,182 46,241                22.2%

Contingencies 50,000 50,000 50,000 - 50,000 0 - 0.0%

EXPENSE TOTALS 715,037 618,797                768,345 587,250               796,843 549,346               793,880 174,917 568,963              22.0%

Revenue Ledger FY2016-2017 FY2017-2018 FY2018-2019

Adopted Estimate Adopted Estimate Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals           Difference  Percent of Budget
As of 12-31-19

Intergovernmental 

Account Description

- Agency Contributions 

County of Alameda 196,115 196,114 196,115 196,114 196,948 196,948 192,127 192,127 - 100.0%

     Cities 196,115 196,114 196,115 196,114 196,948 196,948 192,127 192,127 - 100.0%
     Special Districts 196,115 196,114 196,115 196,114 196,948 196,948 192,127 192,127 - 100.0%

540,037 588,344 588,345 588,344 590,844 590,844               576,380 576,381 (1) 100.0%

Service Charges

- Application Fees 25,000 50,000 30,000 16,000 30,000 16,456 30,000 16,006 13,994                53.4%

Investments

- Interest - 2,000 - 4,000 - 12,314 7,500 4,802 7,500 64.0%

Fund Balance Offset 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 176,000 176,000                180,000 0 180,000              0.0%

REVENUE TOTALS 715,037 742,037               768,345 758,344               796,844 795,614                793,880 597,189 196,691               75.2%

OPERATING NET - 123,240 - 171,094 - 246,268 - 422,273 - -

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 
   As of June 30th

FY2019-2020

FY2019-2020

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
Regional Service Planning | Subdivision of the State of California 

Attachment 1

18



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
1221 Oak Street, Suite 555 
Oakland, California 94612 
T:  510.272.3894 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

John Marchand, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Jerry Thorne, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
David Haubert, Alternate  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Tom Pico, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Scott Haggerty, Chair  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Richard Valle, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

January 16, 2020   

Item No. 8 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: City of Alameda Healthcare District | Report 
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will receive a status update and report 

from the City of Alameda Healthcare District as requested by the Commission at its May 9, 2019 

meeting. The report is being presented for information only at this time with subsequent action, if 

needed, to be taken at a later date.  

 

Information 

 

This item is for Alameda LAFCO to receive and review a report from the City of Alameda Healthcare 

District (HCD) and assess its status in fulfilling its prescribed duties.  

 

The City of Alameda HCD was formed July 1, 2002 after approval by two-thirds of voters and 

organized as an independent special district under the State’s Local Health Care District Act. The 

District formed due to ongoing operating losses of Alameda Hospital. The City of Alameda HCD’s 

jurisdictional boundary is coterminous with the City of Alameda’s jurisdictional boundary and sphere 

of influence. As a condition of District formation, property owners in the City of Alameda pay 

approximately a $300 parcel tax to repay the hospital’s debt, defray the operating losses of the hospital 

and ensure the hospital remains open.  

 

The District entered into a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) with the Alameda Health System (AHS) on 

November 26, 2013, which AHS assumed operational control under the JPA on May 1, 2014.  The 

City of Alameda HCD supports the ongoing operation and capital needs of Alameda Hospital 

through the annual assessment and collection of its authorized parcel tax. The revenues received 

by the District are then paid to AHS for repayments of amounts outstanding under a line of credit 

agreement of $1.5 million, and the operating capital support of Alameda Hospital. The District is 

permitted to withhold and retain from its parcel tax revenue any out-of-pocket costs and expenses 

incurred by the District for its statutorily required operations (i.e., elections, meetings, legal, 

insurance, administrative expenses).   

 

A copy of City of Alameda HCD’s status update can be found in Attachment 1 of the staff report.  

 

 

 

19



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 8 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

Commission Review 

 

At its March 14, 2019 meeting, the Commission approved a five-year study schedule that includes 

a Healthcare Services Study to be completed in 2024. The study will examine the provision of 

health-related services in the County. The report will review the supply, demand, and capacity as 

well as relationships among the affected agencies that provide such services. The City of Alameda 

HCD will be one of the agencies included in the study and a much more thorough analysis of the 

District’s activities and service provisions will be provided.  

 

This item has been placed on the agenda as information only. The Commission is invited to discuss 

the item and provide direction to staff on any related matter as needed.  

 
  

Attachments: 

1. Report from City of Alameda Healthcare District  

20



 

January ,  

Memorandum to: Alameda Commissioners 

Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission 

From:  Deborah E. Stebbins 

Executive Director 

City of Alameda Health Care District 

RE: Update on City of Alameda Health Care District 

Background: 

The City of Alameda Health Care District was formed in  and is the steward of the 

properties on which Alameda Hospital as well as associated facilities such as South 

Shore Rehabilitation, Park Ridge Rehabilitation and the Kate Creedon Wound Center 

are operated.  The District has the responsibility of overseeing collection of the District 

parcel tax and for ensuring that it is used for the purpose for which it was established, 

namely, ensuring the provision of acute care services and an emergency department 

serving the island of Alameda. 

This report includes information about the history of Alameda Hospital before and after 

its  affiliation with Alameda Health System, the sources and uses of parcel tax 

resources over the last several years, as well as the services provided at Alameda 

Hospital and its utilization as a part of Alameda Health System.  The report also 

describes some of the priority issues facing the District as it relates to compliance with 

 and  State seismic regulations and planning for the future configuration of 

health care services on the island. 

History of Alameda Hospital: 

Through the efforts of a registered nurse, Kate Creedon, and two local physicians, the 

idea of converting a small house on the island of Alameda into a rudimentary hospital, 

with facilities to care for a few patients and to provide an urgently needed operating 

rooms, was conceived in .  Alameda’s first hospital opened its doors to patients on 

Attachment 1

21



 

San Jose Avenue in , a six-bed facility originally known as the Alameda Sanitorium.  

The hospital was an immediate success with the community and there was a growing 

demand for services by Alameda residents.  By  the hospital relocated to another 

building on Clinton Avenue, first as a -bed facility and later expanding to  beds. 

By  additional property was purchased on Clinton Avenue for future development as 

demand for services increased.  In , state regulations necessitated the construction 

of a modern fireproof building.  This endeavor exceeded the financial resources of the 

hospital’s founders.  A decision was made to finance construction by selling shares of 

ownership to interested individuals.  By October, , the City of Alameda celebrated 

its -bed modern hospital at  Clinton Avenue, a building which today houses 

physician offices and administrative functions.   

By the late ’s, Alameda Hospital, like many hospitals in the country, faced the 

financial pressures of the Depression.   Many people were hesitant to pursue regular 

medical care; hospitalization occurred only in extreme cases.  Despite several 

reorganizations and numerous attempts to turn the hospital’s financial status around, 

steps to institute foreclosure and sell the hospital properties began in .  Fortunately, 

a group of prospective buyers comprised of businessmen and physicians successfully 

bid on the facilities and the hospital doors stayed open.  Later, the hospital became a 

(c)  corporation. 

Throughout the next several years, Alameda Hospital flourished financially and  

embarked on an exciting era of many more expansion and changes.  By the early 

’s the hospital realized that its facilities would soon be inadequate to care for the 

growing population of Alameda.  By , hospital occupancy was at % and a new 

building, The Stephens Wing, was added bringing the hospital capacity to  beds.  In 

, a new wing, later known as the West Wing, was added to accommodate surgery 

suites, an intensive care unit and central plant functions.   

The most significant expansion of hospital facilities occurred in  with the dedication 

of the ,  square foot South Wing, allowing expansion of almost all hospital 

functions.  A nine bed short stay surgery unit was developed and a new emergency 

department was dedicated in .  In  a -bed skilled nursing facility was 

constructed on the campus across from the South Wing.  Today this facility is known as 

South Shore Rehabilitation facility.   

22



 

Formation of the City of Alameda Health Care District 

By , like many California hospitals, Alameda Hospital faced new financial 

challenges.   The closure of the Alameda Naval Air Station in the mid ’s had an 

affect on demand for services just as it impacted every aspect of life on the island.  For 

most of its existence, Alameda Hospital had operated as a not-for-profit hospital.  

However, in , the Board of Directors proposed a ballot measure (Resolution -

) in Alameda that would cause the formation of a Health Care District which, in 

addition to continuing to operate the Hospital, would levy a $  per parcel on the 

property owners of Alameda to defray operating costs and capital needs of the hospital.   

The formation of the Hospital District and establishment of the sphere of influence of the 

District was authorized through LAFCO Resolution - .  The parcel tax was intended 

to ensure local access to emergency care, acute care and health care services for 

residents and visitors in the City of Alameda. 

District boundaries are coterminous with the boundaries of the City of Alameda. The 

parcel tax, which now totals approximately $  million per year,continues in perpetuity. 

The citizens of Alameda approved formation of the District and the parcel tax through 

the required /  vote, thereby allowing the hospital and emergency department to 

remain open.  As of January , , all real property and equipment associated with 

the hospital was transferred from the non-profit corporation to the District.  The Board of 

Directors is now comprised of  elected officials.  District Board meetings are governed 

by the provisions of the Brown Act. 

Search for Affiliation Partners: 

By , the District Board of Directors initiated a new strategic planning process for the 

Hospital.  While the parcel tax had stabilized the hospital financially, it was clear that 

there was a need for expansion of revenue sources through new programs and 

services.  It was also clear that in the current health care environment, it would not be 

feasible for a relatively small, stand-alone hospital to survive. 

Several new programs were initiated under District Board leadership. In , Alameda 

Hospital acquired operation of a -bed skilled nursing facility near the Park Street 

Bridge and opened the Kate Creedon Wound Care Center, a program serving patients 

23



 

from throughout the East Bay with chronic, non-healing wounds.  The hospital’s 

subacute unit, caring for chronically neurologically impaired patients as a result of injury 

or illness (one of the only such units in the Bay Area) was expanded. 

Most importantly the Board also embarked on an -month effort to evaluate and confer 

with potential partner health care organizations with which Alameda Hospital might 

affiliate.  In late , the Hospital began negotiations with Alameda County Medical 

Center, later known as Alameda Health System (AHS).  As a result, an affiliation 

agreement was finalized in the form of a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA). By the joint 

exercise of the common statutory powers of these two public organizations to operate 

health care facilities, the JPA facilitated the preservation of Alameda Hospital as a 

health care resource for Alameda County.  The JPA was approved by both the District 

and AHS Boards in  and the affiliation was implemented in . 

Current Relationship between City of Alameda Health Care District and Alameda 

Health System: 

Under the JPA, Alameda Health System oversees and manages the operation of 

Alameda Hospital and its affiliated programs, including licensure, certifications, financial 

management and maintenance facilities.  Alameda Hospital continues to operate under 

its own State license.  There are requirements for AHS to report regularly on such 

operations and improvements to the District Board of Directors.  The District maintains 

responsibility for collection of the parcel tax revenue and for ensuring that it is used only 

to support hospital and health care services and facilities in the City of Alameda. 

Exhibit A shows the history of annual transfers from the District to Alameda Heath 

Services (AHS) between FY - .  Transfers are calculated on the annual revenue 

(parcel tax revenue plus interest income) less the cash expenses associated with 

District operations each year.  Note that in FY   there was an increase in District 

expenses due to several factors:  the addition of a half-time Executive Director to 

provide management and strategic planning oversight for the District, engagement of 

strategic planning and architectural consultants to begin the process of planning for 

health care facilities in , and  election- related fees to the County.  District staff 

now include a half-time Executive Director and part-time Executive Assistant. 

Additional funds are provided annually to Alameda Health System from income and 

balance sheet assets derived from two rental properties (known as the Jaber properties) 

that were donated to Alameda Hospital prior to the affiliation with AHS.  These 

24



 

properties remained assets of the District after the affiliation.  In accordance with the 

terms of the original bequest of the properties, no more than % of income and assets 

of the properties can be used to support equipment and/or capital assets for the 

Hospital each year.  The amount of this annual grant to AHS has averaged $ ,  - 

$ ,  each year in addition to the transfers shown in Exhibit A. 

Exhibit B is the most recent audited financial statements (FY ) for the City of 

Alameda Health Care District. 

Patient Services at Alameda Hospital as part of the Alameda Health System: 

Since the affiliation, Alameda Hospital continues to operate services vital to both the 

Alameda and surrounding communities.  Notably the hospital serves over ,  

patients in the Emergency Department each year.  Over  ambulance runs to 

Alameda Hospital are made by the Alameda Fire Department each year, representing 

about one-half of AFD ambulance volume.  This ensures timely access to care for all 

Alameda residents and supports cost efficiencies by the Fire Department by 

concentrating ambulance runs on the island.  Given increasingly congested traffic 

conditions, the existence of an ED on the island undoubtedly provides more expedient 

access to care than an alternative where all patients needed to go off island. 

Prior to the affiliation with AHS, Alameda Hospital developed a primary stroke center, 

one of only five centers in Alameda County and the only one in the AHS system.  

Staffed by a Board certified Neurologist and a Nurse Practitioner, the program enables 

comprehensive diagnosis of patients suffering strokes and, when appropriate, 

administration of time critical TPA.  The Center is certified by The Joint Commission and 

maintains a referral relationship with Eden Hospital in Castro Valley, where more 

complex surgical treatment of stroke patients can be provided when necessary. 

Beginning in , Alameda Hospital expanded its presence in skilled nursing care, 

adding first a  bed facility, South Shore Convalescent Hospital, in  and in , 

the  bed Waters Edge facility.  These programs were added to the existing -bed 

subacute program for chronically neurologically impaired patients which was expanded 

in .   With pressures to reduce acute length of stay, the need for long term care is 

increasing and there is generally a shortage of skilled nursing beds with the capacity to 

provide superior rehabilitation services in Alameda County.  With an average census of 

the  (virtually % occupancy with a waiting list) Alameda Hospital’s long term care 

operates as “distinct part” skilled nursing beds. The majority of the long- term care beds 

25



 

 

at AHS were added as the result of the affiliation with Alameda Hospital.  The skilled 

nursing facility programs at Alamada Hospital enjoy  star ratings from the State of 

California and were recently recognized as the second best skilled nursing service in 

California by Newsweek. magazine.   

The Kate Creedon Wound Care Center was opened on the island prior to the affiliation 

and continues to serve patients with chronic, non-healing wounds. Patient volume at the 

Center, the only wound care program between San Francisco and Walnut Creek, has 

exceeded all pro forma projections since its opening.  The majority of the patients 

originate from outside of Alameda.  It is staffed by a group of multi-disciplinary 

physicians and surgeons; hyperbaric chambers are available to serve patients needing 

advanced wound care therapy.   

Patient Referrals from Highland Hospital:  Since the affiliation, Alameda Hospital has 

regularly received referrals of less acute, mostly medical patients, from Highland 

Hospital.  On average, -  patients are transferred from Highland’s emergency 

department and inpatient units daily, accounting for about a third of Alameda Hospital’s 

average daily census of over .  Patient transfers are facilitated by close 

communication between the medical staff at the two hospitals as well as the installation 

of a common electronic health record, EPIC, in .  The existence of additional acute 

beds at Alameda Hospital results in reduced waiting times in the Emergency 

Department and improved critical care bed availability at Highland Hospital. 

Compliance with SB  seismic requirements. 

Under the Joint Powers Agreement, Alameda Health System is obligated to maintain at 

least  acute care beds and an emergency department in Alameda.  AHS must also 

ensure completion of the State seismic standards for hospitals under SB  and SB 

.  In fact the commitment by AHS to achieve seismic compliance under these 

statutes was a driving factor behind the District’s decision to affiliate with AHS. 

SB  is the State statute which requires completion of seismic retrofits by  

(known as “  seismic requirements”); it is an extension of an original statute, SB , 

a bill that requires hospitals to retrofit, replace, or remove acute care services for 

buildings posing the greatest risk to patients and the public.  Under the provisions of the 

Joint Powers Agreement between the District and Alameda Health System, investment 

of the capital improvements necessary to achieve compliance with these standards is 

the responsibility of AHS.  Submission of a formal plan and evidence of a contractual 

26



 

 

arrangement to complete the seismic retrofit was required by .  Construction is 

required to commence by January,  with completion by . 

In , the state of the AHS operating and capital budget for FY  became an issue 

of significant concern largely due to projected declines in supplemental funding as well 

as retroactive revenue adjustments from the government for reimbursement in prior 

years.  The AHS is subject to approval by the County Board of Supervisors.  The 

relationship between the County and AHS calls the County extending a maximum line of 

credit to AHS which is the sole source of working capital and capital investments for 

AHS.  The driving challenges facing the current financial performance and FY  

budget for AHS is the projection that the System will be at the maximum allowable line 

of credit with the County. 

In  and  , the District Board of Directors developed concerns about AHS’ 

commitment and ability to fund the  seismic requirements.  The AHS Board of 

Trustees instructed management to review all capital investments and evaluate 

potentially discretionary operating programs in an attempt to bring about a balanced FY 

 budget.  As a result of this potential threat to the Alameda Hospital seismic project, 

the District engaged in extensive dialogue not only with AHS management and Board 

members but also with elected officials at the City and State level. 

Fortunately, there has been an interim resolution of the immediate threats to the AHS 

budget as a result of reprojections of revenue sources and some renegotiated rates with 

the County for services provided to County beneficiaries.  The AHS Board of Trustees 

made a formal recommitment to the Alameda Hospital seismic retrofit project in 

September,  and entered into a contract with Layton Construction for the $  

million project.  The construction will involve relocation of several departments including 

the kitchen and cafeteria to buildings which are or can be made seismically compliant 

as well as the infusion of materials under two of the older buildings on campus to 

reduce the risk of liquefaction in the event of an earthquake.  This construction effort 

began in October  and regular reports to OSHPD on the status of the project are 

being submitted by AHS. 

Planning for  Seismic Compliance: 

Now that implementation of the seismic requirements for  is underway, the District, 

in collaboration with AHS, is undertaking planning for meeting for stringent seismic 

standards required by .  Under the Joint Powers Agreement, the District Board of 

27



 

Directors are responsible for planning for the future of Alameda Hospital, including a 

plan for meeting the  standards. 

Toward this end, in  the District began the research necessary for  strategic 

and facility planning through engaging two consulting studies: 

Kaufman Hall Study:  Conducted by the national healthcare consulting firm of Kaufman 

Hall, the consultants who had assisted with the design of the original affiliation in , 

projections were made for volume at Alameda Hospital in  based on: ( ) the current 

utilization at Alameda Hospital in its current status configuration as a part of AHS 

system and ( ) as standalone facility unaffiliated with a system.  The analysis shows 

that under the first scenario, Alameda Hospital provides vital services to the patients of 

Alameda Health System, especially overflow patients referred from the Emergency 

Department and acute care at Highland Hospital.  The second scenario shows 

continued need in  for at least  acute care beds even as a standalone hospital, 

no longer affiliated with AHS.  However, the analysis also shows that Alameda Hospital 

will not be financially viable unless it continues to be a part of a larger health care 

system.  This finding demonstrates the importance for the District to continue 

discussions with AHS about the future of health care available to residents of the 

District. 

Master Facility Planning by Ratcliff Architects: 

The District also engaged Ratliff Architects (Emeryville, CA), a firm with many years of 

experience in analysis of facilities at Alameda, including the design of the  seismic 

retrofit solution.  Ratcliff developed one scenario for facility planning in which all vital 

services could be relocated into the largest building on the Alameda Hospital campus 

(known as the South Wing, built in ).  This plan could enable continued operation of 

acute care services after  in a building which currently meets most of the  

seismic requirements and retrofit of the smaller West Wing building (built in the ’s) 

to house the central plant functions.  While this scenario might enable continuation of 

acute care services and an emergency department in an efficient building, it is 

estimated to cost in excess of $  Million for construction alone.  The magnitude of the 

investment suggests capitalization would be required from a variety of sources and 

continued association of Alameda Hospital with a larger healthcare system. 

Both the City of Alameda Health Care District and Alameda Health System recognize 

the need to collaborate on the alternatives for compliance with the  seismic 

28



 

 

standards to meet the needs of both the residents of Alameda and the surrounding 

communities in Alameda County.  The needs for such long term planning are magnified 

by changing conditions in the health care marketplace including the tentative decision 

by Sutter Health to not bring its Berkeley Alta Bates campus into compliance with  

standards, thereby closing acute and emergency services in Berkeley and the previous 

closure of Doctors Hospital in San Pablo.  Such developments significantly change the 

landscape of health care in the northern parts of Alameda County. 

The District and AHS formed a joint ad hoc committee in late  to begin the 

important work on collaborating on options for the long-term configuration of Alameda 

Hospital and the optimal ways to meet the needs of the residents of the City of Alameda 

and its surrounding area.  The Ad Hoc Committee will build upon the work completed by 

Kaufman Hall and Ratcliff as well as internal need projections completed by AHS staff. 

In summary, in addition to monitoring completion of the  seismic retrofit at Alameda 

Hospital, the District Board has placed the highest priority on strategic planning with 

Alameda Health System and representatives of the community for the future of hospital 

services on the island by . 

29



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 

 

History of Parcel Tax Income and Transfers 

30



CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

HISTORY OF ASSET TRANSFER TO AHS

FY 2016-2019

                 for year ending 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2019

Actual Property Tax Received for 7/1-6/30 $5,778,442 $5,844,087 $5,920,695 $5,902,624

Interest Income Earned $3 $14 $6

         Adjusted District Revenue $5,778,445 $5,844,101 $5,920,701 $5,902,624

District Total Expenses $599,575 $458,565 $430,971 $999,058

         less: depreciation and amortization $369,265 $222,869 $212,418 $212,418

Adjusted Cash Expenses $230,310 $235,696 $218,553 $786,640

        less: principal payment on mortgage $26,940 $28,405 $32,449 $29,041

Adjusted District Outlays $257,250 $264,101 $251,002 $815,681

Funds Transferred to AHS for operations of Alameda 

Hospital $5,521,195 $5,580,000 $5,669,699 $5,086,943

31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B 

 

 

City of Alameda Health Care District 

Annual Audit 

Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2019 

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



Blank for Photocopying 

50



     
\  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
1221 Oak Street, Suite 555 
Oakland, California 94612 
T:  510.272.3894 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

John Marchand, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Jerry Thorne, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
David Haubert, Alternate  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 

Ayn Wieskamp, Chair  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 

Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 

Tom Pico, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Scott Haggerty, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Richard Valle, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT  

January 16, 2020  

Item No. 9 
 

TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Protest Hearing Results | Annexation of the City of Albany to the Alameda 

County Mosquito Abatement District  
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will receive the results of the protest 

hearing conducted for the annexation of the City of Albany to the Alameda County Mosquito 

Abatement District (ACMAD). The noticed hearing was held by the Executive Officer on Wednesday, 

January 8, 2020.  The number of protests received did not reach the threshold to either terminate the 

annexation proposal or subject the proposal to an election. The Commission’s approval to transfer 

mosquito control services and responsibilities to the affected territory will be ordered once all terms 

are satisfied. Staff recommends the Commission adopt a draft resolution ordering the annexation 

without an election. 

 

Background 

 

At a noticed public hearing on November 14, 2019, the Commission approved the annexation of the 

City of Albany to the Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District (ACMAD). The annexation 

proposal was submitted by ACMAD. The stated purpose of the proposal was to create a countywide 

mosquito abatement district covering all cities within the County of Alameda to streamline essential 

public health services. The affected territory lies entirely within ACMAD’s sphere of influence and 

consists of 394.4 acres and 5,741 parcels. The Commission proceeded to approve the annexation 

without modifications and standard terms.  

 

In accordance with the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 

(“CKH”), the proposal is subject to protest proceedings given that the area is inhabited with twelve or 

more registered voters, and it had not received written consent from all landowners within the affected 

territory – City of Albany.  

 

In terms with the procedures of a protest proceeding, LAFCO is the agency that conducts the hearing 

with the purpose of which is to receive written protests from affected landowners and or registered 

voters regarding the proposal and to determine whether a majority protest exists. The City of Albany 

has a total of 11,535 registered voters and approximately 15,000 landowners. With regard to this 

annexation, which is inhabited, the Commission shall take one of the following actions: 

 

 

51



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 9 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

▪ Order the annexation if written protests have been filed by less than 25% of registered voters 

or landowners owning less than 25% of the assessed value within the subject area; or  

 

▪ Order the annexation subject to an election if at least 25% but less than 50% of voters, or at 

least 25% of landowners owning 25% or more of the assessed value of land protest; or  

 

▪ Terminate the annexation if written protests have been filed by a majority of voters in the 

subject area.  

 

Discussion 

 

The protest hearing was noticed to all registered voters and landowners within the affected territory and 

held on Wednesday, January 8, 2020 from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. at the County Administration Building 

located at 1221 Oak Street, Board of Supervisors Chambers in Oakland, California. Written protests 

could either be mailed or dropped off at the Alameda LAFCO administrative office. The hearing was 

conducted by the LAFCO Executive Officer, who was delegated authority to conduct the protest hearing 

on behalf of the Commission pursuant to Government Code (G.C.) Section 57000(c) in CKH.  

 

Approximately 7 people were in attendance at the hearing and a total of 93 written protests were 

received – 8 from registered voters and 85 from landowners. The number of written protests received 

did not reach the threshold to either terminate the annexation proposal or subject the proposal to an 

election. Therefore, pursuant to G.C. Section 57075(3), the Commission must take the following action 

and order the change of organization.  

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Adopt the draft resolution as identified as Attachment 1 ordering the annexation without an election. 

 

Alternative Two:  

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting within the next 22 days.  

 

Recommendation 

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  

 

 

 

 

52



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 9 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

Procedures for Consideration 

 

This item has been placed on the agenda for action as part of a noticed public hearing. The following 

procedures are recommended for consideration.  

 

1) Receive a verbal report from staff; 

2) Invite questions from the Commission; 

3) Open the public hearing and invite comments from audience (mandatory); and 

4) Close the public hearing, discuss item, and consider recommendation  

 

Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 

Executive Officer 

 

Attachments: 

1. Draft Resolution  

2. Protest Hearing Notice 

3. Protest Hearing Agenda 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

53



ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX 

ORDERING THE ANNEXATION OF THE CITY OF ALBANY TO THE ALAMEDA 
COUNTY MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT WITHOUT AN ELECTION 

WHEREAS, this action is taken pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government 
Reorganization Act of 2000 (Government Code Section 56000 et seq.) and policies of the Alameda 
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO). 

WHEREAS, a resolution application dated July 10, 2019 from the Alameda County Mosquito 
Abatement District was filed with the Executive Officer of the Alameda Local Agency 
Commission, pursuant to Title 5, Division 3, commencing with Section 56000 of the California 
Government Code; 

WHEREAS, on November 14, 2019, the Commission adopted the Resolution 2019-11, 
making determinations and approving the annexation subject to terms and conditions; and  

WHEREAS, the value of written protests filed and not withdrawn was determined in 
compliance with Government Code Section 57052.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE 
AND ORDER as follows:  

1. Upon conclusion of the protest hearing fewer than 25 percent of the registered voters and
fewer than 25 percent of landowners owning less than 25 percent of the assessed value of
land within the annexation area filed valid written protests against the annexation.

2. The annexation is ordered without an election.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission on
January 16, 2020 by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT: 

Attachment 1

54



 
APPROVED:      ATTEST: 

 
 
 

__________________     __________________  
Scott Haggerty       Rachel Jones 
Chair       Executive Officer 

55



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

THE ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION (LAFCO) 

is holding a public hearing to receive protests filed against the following proposal: 

Annexation of the City of Albany to the Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District 

Wednesday, January 8, 2020 from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. at the Alameda County Administration Building 

Board of Supervisors Chambers, 5
th

 Floor  

1221 Oak Street, Oakland, California 

The Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District filed the annexation proposal via resolution of application for the purpose of creating a 

countywide mosquito abatement district covering all the cities within the County of Alameda and to improve the efficiency and effectiveness 

of mosquito control services. The subject annexation includes the entire City of Albany. The annexed territory will be subject to an annual 

special tax and benefit assessment of $1.74 and $2.50 per single family residence or equivalent property respectively, in the same manner as 

applied to the District generally. For a full and complete description of the change of organization and all applicable terms and conditions, 

please refer to Alameda LAFCO Resolution No. 2019-11 which is available upon request through the LAFCO office. 

How to File a Protest: The hearing on January 8, 2020 will be open to the public. To be considered valid, a protest must be written and filed 

by either a landowner or a registered voter, within the area included within the reorganization. Protests may either be mailed to the Alameda 

LAFCO at 1221 Oak Street, Room 555, Oakland, CA 94612 or delivered to the LAFCO Executive Officer at the protest hearing. Each protest 

must be signed and dated, must state whether it is made by a landowner or a registered voter, and must include the name and address of the 

protestor and a street or parcel number identifying the location of the land. A registered voter’s protest must show the name and address 

appearing on the affidavit of registration. Disclosures related to expenditures made for political purposes related to the subject change of 

organization must comply with the Political Reform Act (California Government Code Section 81000 et. seq.). Only written protests that 

are received prior to the end of the hearing on January 8, 2020 will be accepted as timely. 

For additional information, please contact  

Alameda LAFCO Executive Officer Rachel Jones at (510) 271-5142 or rachel.jones@acgov.org. 

Attachment 2

56

mailto:rachel.jones@acgov.org


 

Alameda 

LAFCO 
1221 Oak Street, Room 555 
Oakland, CA 94612 
 

 

 

 

 

          
PUBLIC NOTICE 

ANNEXATION PROTEST 

HEARING 

 
 

57



PROTEST HEARING 
AGENDA 

Annexation of the City of Albany to the Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District 

Wednesday, January 8, 2020, from 6:00 P.M. to 8:00 P.M. 
County Adminsitration Building, Board of Supervisors Chamber 

1221 Oak Street, 5th Floor, Oakland, California  

On behalf of the Chair, the Commission welcomes you to its meetings and your interest is appreciated. If you 
wish to speak to a matter on the agenda, please complete a Speakers Card and submit it to staff. When 
your name is announced, please come forward and give your name and address, and state your 
comments or questions. If you wish to speak on a matter not on the agenda, please wait until the Chair calls 
for Public Comment. Speakers may have a time limitation imposed at the discretion of the Chair. Alameda 
LAFCO meetings are wheelchair accessible. Call (510) 208-4949 (voice) or (510) 834-6754 (TDD) to request a 
sign-language interpreter. Five working days’ notice is required. 

Only those issues which are brought up at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the LAFCO Commissioners at or prior to the hearing, may be raised in any legal 
challenge to the actions taken by the Commission. 

1. 6:00 P.M. – Call to Order

2. Protest Hearing – Annexation of the City of Albany to the Alameda County Mosquito Abatement
District. Annexation of the entire City of Albany of approximately 394.4 acres into the Alameda County
Mosquito Abatement District (ACMAD) was approved by the Alameda Local Agency Formation
Commission (LAFCO) on November 14, 2019 for the purpose of creatinga countywide mosquito
abatement district covering all cities within the County of Alameda and to streamline essential public
health services. The affected territory lies on the San Francisco Bay and is bordered by the City of
Berkeley on the south and east, and the City of El Cerrito in Contra Costa County on the north.

A. Describe the proposal and purpose of the hearing – Rachel Jones, Hearing Officer
B. Open the hearing
C. Receive written protests and public comment
D. Close the hearing
E. Tabulate and announce the preliminary results of the protests

3. Adjourn the meeting

cal Age c  Form  C mm

Attachment 3

58



ALAMEDA LAFCO 
January 8, 2020 Protest Hearing Agenda Page 2 of 4 

 

 

 
DISCLOSURE OF BUSINESS OR CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS TO COMMISSIONERS 

  
Government Code Section 84308 requires that a Commissioner (regular or alternate) disqualify herself or himself and not participate 
in a proceeding involving an "entitlement for use" application if, within the last twelve months, the Commissioner has received $250 or 
more in business or campaign contributions from an applicant, an agent of an applicant, or any financially interested person who 
actively supports or opposes a decision on the matter. A LAFCo decision approving a proposal (e.g., for an annexation) will often be an 
"entitlement for use" within the meaning of Section 84308.  Sphere of Influence determinations are exempt under Government Code Section   
84308. 
 
If you are an applicant or an agent of an applicant on such a matter to be heard by the Commission and if you have made business or 
campaign contributions totaling $250 or more to any Commissioner in the past twelve months, Section 84308(d) requires that you disclose 
that fact for the official record of the proceeding. The disclosure of any such contribution (including the amount of the contribution and the 
name of the recipient Commissioner) must be made either: l) In writing and delivered to the Secretary of the Commission prior to the hearing 
on the matter, or 2) By oral declaration made at the time the hearing on the matter is opened. Contribution disclosure forms are available at 
the meeting for anyone who prefers to disclose contributions in writing. 
 
Pursuant to GC Section 84308, if you wish to participate in the above proceedings, you or your agent are prohibited from making a campaign 
contribution of $250 or more to any Commissioner. This prohibition begins on the date you begin to actively support or oppose an application 
before LAFCO and continues until 3 months after a final decision is rendered by LAFCO.  If you or your agent have made a contribution 
of $250 or more to any Commissioner during the 12 months preceding the decision, in the proceeding that Commissioner must disqualify 
himself or herself from the decision. However, disqualification is not required if the Commissioner returns that campaign contribution within 
30 days of learning both about the contribution and the fact that you are a participant in the proceedings. Separately, any person with a 
disability under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) may receive a copy of the agenda or a copy of all the documents constituting the 
agenda packet for a meeting upon request. Any person with a disability covered under the ADA may also request a disability-related 
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in a public meeting. Please contact the LAFCO 
office at least three (3) working days prior to the meeting for any requested arrangements or accommodations. 

 
Alameda LAFCO 
Administrative Office 
1221 Oak Street, 
Suite555 Oakland, 
California 94612 
T: 510.272.3784 
W: acgov.org/lafco

59



Blank for Photocopying 

60



     
\  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
1221 Oak Street, Suite 555 
Oakland, California 94612 
T:  510.272.3894 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

John Marchand, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Jerry Thorne, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
David Haubert, Alternate  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 

Ayn Wieskamp, Chair  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 

Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 

Tom Pico, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Scott Haggerty, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Richard Valle, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT  

January 16, 2020  

Item No. 10 
 

TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Out of Area Service Agreement | 27398 Fairview Avenue to the City 

of Hayward  
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider an out of area service 

agreement filed by the City of Hayward requesting approval to extend public wastewater services 

outside of its jurisdictional boundary to one affected lot located at 27398 Fairview Avenue in the 

unincorporated community of Fairview. The affected territory as submitted is developed with a single-

family residence on one legal lot. The purpose of the proposal is a response to a failing septic system 

and potential health and safety hazard by extending public wastewater services to the affected territory. 

Staff recommends approval of the proposal with standard terms.  

 

Background 

 

Alameda LAFCO has received a proposal through a resolution of application from the City of Hayward 

on behalf of landowners (Joseph and Margaret Revonlinsky) requesting an out of area service 

agreement (OASA) approval involving one legal lot totaling 2.1 acres within the City’s sphere of 

influence. The affected territory has a situs address of 27398 Fairview Avenue and is located within 

the unincorporated community of Fairview. The parcel is developed with a single-family residence 

built in 1957 and totals 1,817 square feet in size with three bedrooms. The County of Alameda 

Assessor’s Office identifies the subject parcel as 085A-6200-010-00.  

 

Other Affected Agencies 

 

The affected territory lies within the unincorporated area of Alameda County. It also lies within the 

boundaries of the following special districts subject to Commission oversight: 

 

• Castle Homes County Service Area (CSA) 

• Fairview Fire Protection District 

• Hayward Area Recreation and Park District 

• Alameda County Fire Department 

• Alameda County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 

• East Bay Regional Parks District 

• Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District 

 

61



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 10 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

*    The affected territory also lies within the Hayward Unified School District and lies within 

County Supervisorial District No. 4 (Nate Miley).  

 

Discussion 

 

This item is for the Commission to consider approving – with or without modifications – the City’s 

proposal for an OASA with the affected territory. The Commission may also consider applying 

conditions to an approval so long as it does not directly regulate land use, property development, or 

subdivision requirements. 

 

Purpose of the Proposal 

 

The primary purpose of the proposal is to facilitate the extension of public wastewater service in 

step with removing a failed septic system with the potential of creating a public health and safety 

hazard. The OASA connection to the wastewater system would serve as an alternative to repairing 

or replacing the system. A sewer main extension of approximately 350 feet is required and will be 

paid for by the landowners of the affected territories.  

 

Development Potential  

 

The affected territory as proposed is planned for single-family residential with limited agriculture 

use by the County of Alameda. The zoning designation is under the County of Alameda’s 

classification as R-1-L-BE with a 5-acre minimum building site area. In order to provide for 

maximum site and design review, secondary units may be developed only through rezoning to a 

Planned Development (PD) District.  

 

Analysis  

 

Government Code (G.C.) Section 56133 requires that a city or special district obtain written LAFCO 

approval prior to extending services by contract or agreement outside of the agency’s jurisdictional 

boundary. This authority supports LAFCO’s legislated role to promote orderly growth and 

development within the region. LAFCO may authorize out of area service agreements only if the 

proposal is to extend services to the affected territory either:  

 

1. Outside the jurisdictional boundary but within the sphere of influence in anticipation of a later 

change of organization; or  

  

2. Outside the jurisdictional boundary and outside the SOI in response to an existing or impending  

documented threat to public health or safety of the affected residents.   

 

 

62



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 10 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

The City of Hayward has requested approval of the OASA on the premise of addressing a public health 

and safety threat tied to the failed septic system, even though the subject territory is located within the 

City of Hayward’s sphere of influence. The County of Alameda’s Department of Environmental Health 

has also provided LAFCO with a letter noticing the potential threat (Attachment 3).  

 

Annexations are the preferred method under LAFCO law to use boundary changes to ensure the 

relationship between land and service providers, unless local conditions suggest otherwise.  

 

The City of Hayward indicates in its application that the annexation of the parcel is not feasible at this 

time due to lack of resident interest. The city prefers to annex the entire territory than on an individual 

basis and given that the affected territory is not exactly contiguous to the city’s jurisdictional boundary, 

other surrounding territories would also have to be annexed at the same time.  

 

Staff finds that the local conditions sufficiently justify an OASA as the most responsive means to 

provide wastewater services to the affected territory. The wastewater services proposed by the city will 

not facilitate a change of land use nor will they promote or induce growth on the property or surrounding 

properties. The proposed service agreement is consistent with LAFCO law and the policies of this 

Commission in that the subject properties are within the City of Hayward’s sphere of influence and the 

landowners have consented to annexation upon request by the city.  

 

Other Mandated Considerations 

 

Environmental Review 
 

The Commission serves as lead agency under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

for the proposed OASA. Staff has determined the proposal is a project under CEQA, but exempt 

from further review under Public Resources Code Section 15303(d). This exemption contemplates 

the construction of new utility systems and the proposed wastewater services would support one 

single-family residence for each subject territory which is the maximum allowed on the parcel.  

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Adopt the draft resolution (Attachment 4) approving the out of area service agreement of 27398 

Fairview Avenue with the City of Hayward.  

 

Alternative Two:  

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction for more information as 

needed. 

   

63



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 10 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

4 | P a g e  

 

Alternative Three:  

Disapprove the proposal. Disapproval would statutorily prohibit the initiation of a similar proposal for 

one year unless a request for reconsideration is filed and approved by the Commission within 30 days. 

 

Recommendation 

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  

 

 
Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 

 

Attachments: 
1. Vicinity Maps  
2. Application Materials 
3. Letter from County of Alameda Department of Environmental Health 

4. Draft Resolution  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

64



Attachment 1

65



Attachment 2

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



Attachment 3

82



  Attachment 4 

 

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

  

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX 

 

APPROVAL OF OUT OF AREA SERVICE AGREEEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

HAYWARD AND 27398 FAIRVIEW AVENUE FOR THE PROVISION OF 

WASTEWATER SERVICES 

 

WHEREAS, the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission, hereinafter referred to as 

the “Commission,” is responsible for regulating boundary changes affecting cities and special 

districts under the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000; and  

 

WHEREAS, a Resolution of Application (Resolution No. 19-199 dated December 10 , 2019) 

was filed with the Executive Officer of the Alameda Local Agency Commission by the City 

Council of Hayward, pursuant to Title 5, Division 3, commencing with Section 56000 of the 

California Government Code; 

 

WHEREAS, said resolution is for the purpose of requesting approval of an out of area service 

agreement (OASA) to extend wastewater services outside the City of Hayward’s jurisdictional 

boundary to the property located at 27398 Fairview Avenue (0854-6200-010-00). 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer has reviewed the proposal and prepared a report with 

recommendations; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer’s report and recommendations on the proposal have been 

presented to the Commission in the manner provided by law; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Commission considered all factors required by law under Government Code 

Section 56133 and adopted local policies and procedures;  

 

WHEREAS, a public meeting was held on January 16, 2020, Alameda LAFCO heard and 

received all oral and written protests, objections, and evidence which were made, presented or 

filed and all persons present were given an opportunity to appear and be heard with respect to any 

matter pertaining to said application.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE 

AND ORDER as follows:  

 

1.  The Commission’s determinations on the proposal incorporate the information and analysis 

provided in the Executive Officer’s written report presented on January 16, 2020.  

 

2.   The Commission serves as the lead agency under the California Environmental Quality 

Act (CEQA) in considering the impacts of the proposal. That, the Commission 

independently finds the action is a project under CEQA, but exempt from further CEQA 

review under the California Public Resources Code Section 15303(d).   

 

83



  Attachment 4 

 

3. The agreement will permit the provision of wastewater services to the property located at 

27398 Avenue in the unincorporated community of Fairview of Alameda County.  

   

4.  The service agreement will not facilitate a change of land use, promote or induce growth 

on the property or surrounding properties, or facilitate the delivery of other types of 

services or functions; and  

 

5. That the request of the City of Hayward for an out of area service agreement between the 

City of Hayward and the subject property owners for the provision of wastewater service 

to the property located at 27398 Fairview Avenue (0854-6200-010-00) in the unincorporated 

community of Fairview is hereby approved and authorized subject to any and all terms and 

conditions as set forth in the service agreement between the City of Hayward and the subject 

property owners.  

 

6. As part of conditional approval of the OASA, the property owners located at 27398 

Fairview must sign a pre-annexation agreement with the City of Hayward.  

 

7. As allowed under Government Code 56107, the Commission authorizes the Executive 

Officer to make non-substantive corrections to this resolution to address any technical 

defect, error, irregularity, or omission.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission on 

January 16, 2020 by the following vote: 

 

AYES:   

 

NOES: 

 

ABSTAIN:  

 

ABSENT:  

 

 

APPROVED:      ATTEST: 

 

          

 

__________________     __________________  

Scott Haggerty       Rachel Jones 

Chair       Executive Officer 

84



     
\  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
1221 Oak Street, Suite 555 
Oakland, California 94612 
T:  510.272.3894 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

John Marchand, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Jerry Thorne, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
David Haubert, Alternate  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 

Ayn Wieskamp, Chair  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 

Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 

Tom Pico, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Scott Haggerty, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Richard Valle, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT  

January 16, 2020  

Item No. 11 
 

TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Out of Area Service Agreement | 354 Virginia Way to the City of 

Pleasanton  
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider an out of area service 

agreement filed by the City of Pleasanton requesting approval to extend public wastewater services 

outside of its jurisdictional boundary to one affected lot located at 354 Virginia Way in the 

unincorporated community of Remen Tract. The affected territory as submitted is developed with a 

single-family residence on one legal lot. The purpose of the proposal is a response to a failing septic 

system and potential health and safety hazard by extending public wastewater services to the affected 

territory. Staff recommends approval of the proposal with standard terms.  

 

Background 

 

Alameda LAFCO has received a proposal through a resolution of application from the City of 

Pleasanton on behalf of landowners (Gary and Janice Habluetzel) requesting an out of area service 

agreement (OASA) approval involving one legal lot totaling 0.26 acres within the City’s sphere of 

influence. The affected territory has a situs address of 354 Virginia Way and is located within the 

unincorporated community of Remen Tract. The parcel is developed with a single-family residence 

built in 1951 and totals 1,423 square feet in size with three bedrooms. The County of Alameda 

Assessor’s Office identifies the subject parcel as 946-1710-008-00.  

 

Other Affected Agencies 

 

The affected territory lies within the unincorporated area of Alameda County. It also lies within the 

boundaries of the following special districts subject to Commission oversight: 

 

• Alameda County Fire Department 

• Alameda County Sherriff Department 

• East Bay Regional Parks District 

• Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District 

• Alameda County Vector Control Services District 

*    The affected territory also lies within the Pleasanton Unified School District and lies within 

County Supervisorial District No. 4 (Nate Miley).  

85



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 11 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

Discussion 

 

This item is for the Commission to consider approving – with or without modifications – the City’s 

proposal for an OASA with the affected territory. The Commission may also consider applying 

conditions to an approval so long as it does not directly regulate land use, property development, or 

subdivision requirements. 

 

Purpose of the Proposal 

 

The primary purpose of the proposal is to facilitate the extension of public wastewater service in 

step with removing a failed septic system with the potential of creating a public health and safety 

hazard. The OASA connection to the wastewater system would serve as an alternative to repairing 

or replacing the system. A sewer main is located in front of the subject property, and the property 

owners will be responsible for all associated costs to connect to the wastewater system.  

 

Development Potential  

 

The affected territory as proposed is planned for medium residential density within the East County 

Area General Plan of the County of Alameda. The zoning designation is under the County of 

Alameda’s classification as R-1-B10 with a minimum lot size of 10,000 square feet and as a result 

the affected territory cannot be further subdivided.  

 

Analysis  

 

Government Code (G.C.) Section 56133 requires that a city or special district obtain written LAFCO 

approval prior to extending services by contract or agreement outside of the agency’s jurisdictional 

boundary. This authority supports LAFCO’s legislated role to promote orderly growth and 

development within the region. LAFCO may authorize out of area service agreements only if the 

proposal is to extend services to the affected territory either:  

 

1. Outside the jurisdictional boundary but within the sphere of influence in anticipation of a later 

change of organization; or  

  

2. Outside the jurisdictional boundary and outside the SOI in response to an existing or impending  

documented threat to public health or safety of the affected residents.   

The City of Pleasanton has requested approval of the OASA on the premise of addressing a public health 

and safety threat tied to the failed septic systems, even though the subject territories are located within 

the City of Pleasanton’s sphere of influence. The County of Alameda’s Department of Environmental 

Health has also provided LAFCO with a letter noticing the potential threat (Attachment 3).  

 

86



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 11 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

Annexations are the preferred method under LAFCO law to use boundary changes to ensure the 

relationship between land and service providers, unless local conditions suggest otherwise.  

 

The City of Pleasanton indicates in its application that the annexation of the parcel is not feasible at this 

time due to lack of resident interest. The City prefers to annex the entire territory than on an individual 

basis and given that the affected territory is not exactly contiguous to the City’s jurisdictional boundary, 

other surrounding territories would also have to be annexed at the same time.  

 

Staff finds that the local conditions sufficiently justify an OASA as the most responsive means to 

provide wastewater services to the affected territory. The wastewater services proposed by the City will 

not facilitate a change of land use nor will they promote or induce growth on the property or surrounding 

properties. The proposed service agreement is consistent with LAFCO law and the policies of this 

Commission in that the subject property is within the City of Pleasanton’s sphere of influence and the 

landowners have consented to annexation upon request by the city.  

 

Other Mandated Considerations 

 

Environmental Review 
 

The Commission serves as the responsible agency under the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA) for the proposed OASA. The City has determined the proposal is a project under CEQA, 

but exempt from further review under Public Resources Code Section 15061(b)(3). This exemption 

applies to an activity when there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant 

effect on the environment. Staff independently concurs the City has made appropriate 

determinations.  

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Adopt the draft resolution (Attachment 4) approving the out of area service agreement of 354 Virginia 

Way with the City of Pleasanton.  

 

Alternative Two:  

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction for more information as 

needed. 

   

Alternative Three:  

Disapprove the proposal. Disapproval would statutorily prohibit the initiation of a similar proposal for 

one year unless a request for reconsideration is filed and approved by the Commission within 30 days. 

 

87



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 11 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

4 | P a g e  

 

 

Recommendation 

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  

 

 
Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 

 

Attachments: 
1. Vicinity Map 
2. Application Materials 
3. Letter from County of Alameda Department of Environmental Health 

4. Draft Resolution  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

88



Attachment 1

89



Attachment 2

90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
Land Use Program 
1131 Harbor Bay Parkway, Suite 250 
Alameda, CA 94502-6577 
(510) 567-6700
FAX (510) 337-9335

June 20, 2019 

Ms. Rachel Jones, Executive Officer  

Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission 

(Sent via E-mail to:  Rachel.Jones@acgov.org) 

Subject: Letter of Support for a municipal sewer connection associated with an 
Existing Onsite Wastewater Treatment System (OWTS) 

 354 Virginia Way, Pleasanton  

Assessor Parcel Number: 946-1710-8 

Dear Ms. Jones: 

Alameda County Department of Environmental Health (ACDEH) OWTS Program has 

received a request to support a municipal sewer system connection for the subject 

property from the owners. Based on the review of the documents in the property 

file, there are no approved plans for the existing OWTS at the subject property. In 

addition, letters were issued in 1993 (attached) and 2003 (attached) by ACDEH to 

the property owner indicating the failure of the existing OWTS and recommending 

connection to a municipal sewer line.   

Due to the absence of approved plans, the age of the existing OWTS, its unknown 

existing condition, and its past record of failure, continued use of the OWTS has a 

potential of creating a public health and safety hazard. Therefore, ACDEH is in 

support of a municipal sewer system connection to the subject property.  

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this correspondence, 

please call me at (510) 639-1287 or send me an electronic mail message at 

muhammed.khan@acgov.org.  

Sincerely, 

Muhammed Khan, Senior REHS 

OWTS Technical Compliance Coordinator, Land Use Program 

cc:  Natali Colom Cruz, ACDEH, OWTS Program (Sent via E-mail to Natali.Colom@acgov.org)

ALAMEDA COUNTY 

HEALTH CARE SERVICES AGENCY 
Colleen Chawla, Agency Director 

Attachment 3

117

mailto:Rachel.Jones@acgov.org
mailto:muhammed.khan@acgov.org
mailto:Natali.Colom@acgov.org


Attachment 4 

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

  

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX 

 

APPROVAL OF OUT OF AREA SERVICE AGREEEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

PLEASANTON AND 354 VIRGINIA WAY FOR THE PROVISION OF WASTEWATER 

SERVICES 

 

WHEREAS, the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission, hereinafter referred to as 

the “Commission,” is responsible for regulating boundary changes affecting cities and special 

districts under the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000; and  

 

WHEREAS, a Resolution of Application (Resolution No. 19-1118 dated November 5, 2019) 

was filed with the Executive Officer of the Alameda Local Agency Commission by the City 

Council of Pleasanton, pursuant to Title 5, Division 3, commencing with Section 56000 of the 

California Government Code; 

 

WHEREAS, said resolution is for the purpose of requesting approval of an out of area service 

agreement (OASA) to extend wastewater services outside the City of Pleasanton’s jurisdictional 

boundary to the property located at 354 Virginia Way (946-1710-008-00). 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer has reviewed the proposal and prepared a report with 

recommendations; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer’s report and recommendations on the proposal have been 

presented to the Commission in the manner provided by law; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Commission considered all factors required by law under Government Code 

Section 56133 and adopted local policies and procedures;  

 

WHEREAS, a public meeting was held on January 16, 2020, Alameda LAFCO heard and 

received all oral and written protests, objections, and evidence which were made, presented or 

filed and all persons present were given an opportunity to appear and be heard with respect to any 

matter pertaining to said application.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE 

AND ORDER as follows:  

 

1.  The Commission’s determinations on the proposal incorporate the information and analysis 

provided in the Executive Officer’s written report presented on January 16, 2020.  

 

2.  The Commission serves as the responsible agency under the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) in considering the impacts of the proposal. That, the Commission 

independently concurs with the City of Pleasanton’s findings that the action is a project 

under CEQA, but exempt from further CEQA review under the California Public 

Resources Code Section 15061(b)(3).   

118



Attachment 4 

 

3. The agreement will permit the provision of wastewater services to the property located at 

354 Virginia Way in the unincorporated community of Remen Tract of Alameda County.  

   

4.  The service agreement will not facilitate a change of land use, promote or induce growth 

on the property or surrounding properties, or facilitate the delivery of other types of 

services or functions; and  

 

5. That the request of the City of Pleasanton for an out of area service agreement between the 

City of Pleasanton and the subject property owners for the provision of wastewater service 

to the property located at 354 Virginia Way (946-1710-008-00) in the unincorporated 

community of Remen Tract is hereby approved and authorized subject to any and all terms and 

conditions as set forth in the service agreement between the City of Pleasanton and the subject 

property owners.  

 

6. As part of conditional approval of the OASA, the property owners located at 354 Virginia 

Way must sign a pre-annexation agreement with the City of Pleasanton.  

 

7. As allowed under Government Code 56107, the Commission authorizes the Executive 

Officer to make non-substantive corrections to this resolution to address any technical 

defect, error, irregularity, or omission.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission on 

January 16, 2020 by the following vote: 

 

AYES:   

 

NOES: 

 

ABSTAIN:  

 

ABSENT:  

 

 

APPROVED:      ATTEST: 

 

          

 

__________________     __________________  

Scott Haggerty       Rachel Jones 

Chair       Executive Officer 

119



Blank for Photocopying 

120



     
\  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
1221 Oak Street, Suite 555 
Oakland, California 94612 
T:  510.272.3894 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

John Marchand, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Jerry Thorne, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
David Haubert, Alternate  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 

Ayn Wieskamp, Chair  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 

Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 

Tom Pico, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Scott Haggerty, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Richard Valle, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT  

January 16, 2020  

Item No. 12 
 

TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Out of Area Service Agreement | 280 Oak Lane 
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider an out of area service 

agreement filed by the City of Pleasanton requesting approval to extend public water services outside 

of its jurisdictional boundary to one affected lot located at 280 Oak Lane in the unincorporated area of 

Alameda County. The affected territory as submitted is developed with a single-family residence on 

one legal lot. The purpose of the proposal is to establish a public water connection to the affected 

territory. Staff recommends approval of the proposal with standard terms.  

 

Background 

 

Alameda LAFCO has received a proposal through a resolution of application from the City of 

Pleasanton on behalf of landowners (Robert and Kelli Himsl) requesting an out of area service 

agreement (OASA) approval involving one legal lot totaling 1.3 acres within the City’s sphere of 

influence. The affected territory has a situs address of 280 Oak Lane and is located within the 

unincorporated area of Alameda County near the City of Pleasanton, west of Foothill Road and south 

of Castlewood Country Club. The parcel is developed with a single-family residence built in 2006 and 

totals 4,263 square feet in size with four bedrooms. The County of Alameda Assessor’s Office 

identifies the subject parcel as 946-4436-018-00. 

 

Other Affected Agencies 

 

The affected territory lies within the unincorporated area of Alameda County. It also lies within the 

boundaries of the following special districts subject to Commission oversight: 

 

• Alameda County Fire Department 

• Alameda County Sherriff Department 

• East Bay Regional Parks District 

• Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District 

• Alameda County Vector Control Services District 

*    The affected territory also lies within the Pleasanton Unified School District and lies within 

County Supervisorial District No. 4 (Nate Miley).  

 

121



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 12 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

Discussion 

 

This item is for the Commission to consider approving – with or without modifications – the City’s 

proposal for an OASA with the affected territory. The Commission may also consider applying 

conditions to an approval so long as it does not directly regulate land use, property development, or 

subdivision requirements. 

 

Purpose of the Proposal 

 

The primary purpose of the proposal is to establish the extension of public water service as the 

subject residence has been sharing a water meter located at 7661 Foothill Road for the last twelve 

years. The water main is located in front of the subject property, and the property owners will be 

responsible for all associated costs to connect to the water system.  

 

Development Potential  

 

The affected territory as proposed is designated as low density residential within the East County 

Area General Plan for the County of Alameda. The zoning designation is under the County of 

Alameda’s classification as R-1-B40 with a minimum lot size of 40,000 square feet and as a result 

the affected territory cannot be further subdivided.  

 

Analysis  

 

Government Code (G.C.) Section 56133 requires that a city or special district obtain written LAFCO 

approval prior to extending services by contract or agreement outside of the agency’s jurisdictional 

boundary. This authority supports LAFCO’s legislated role to promote orderly growth and 

development within the region. LAFCO may authorize out of area service agreements only if the 

proposal is to extend services to the affected territory either:  

 

1. Outside the jurisdictional boundary but within the sphere of influence in anticipation of a later 

change of organization; or  

  

2. Outside the jurisdictional boundary and outside the SOI in response to an existing or impending  

documented threat to public health or safety of the affected residents.   

The City of Pleasanton has requested approval of the OASA on the premise of reconciling and 

formalizing a public water connection. Annexations are the preferred method under LAFCO law to use 

boundary changes to ensure the relationship between land and service providers, unless local conditions 

suggest otherwise.  

 

The City of Pleasanton indicates in its application that the annexation of the parcel is not feasible at this 

time due to lack of resident interest. The City prefers to annex the entire territory than on an individual  

122



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 12 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

3 | P a g e  

 

basis and given that the affected territory is not exactly contiguous to the City’s jurisdictional boundary, 

other surrounding territories would also have to be annexed at the same time.  

 

Staff finds that the local conditions sufficiently justify an OASA as the most responsive means to 

provide public water services to the affected territory. The water service proposed by the City will not 

facilitate a change of land use nor will they promote or induce growth on the property or surrounding 

properties. The proposed service agreement is consistent with LAFCO law and the policies of this 

Commission in that the subject property is within the City of Pleasanton’s sphere of influence and the 

landowners have consented to annexation upon request by the city.  

 

Other Mandated Considerations 

 

Environmental Review 
 

The Commission serves as the responsible agency under the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA) for the proposed OASA. The City has determined the proposal is a project under CEQA, 

but exempt from further review under Public Resources Code Section 15061(b)(3). This exemption 

applies to an activity when there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant 

effect on the environment. Staff independently concurs the City has made appropriate 

determinations.  

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  

 

Alternative One (Recommended):  

Adopt the draft resolution (Attachment 3) approving the out of area service agreement of 280 Oak 

Lane with the City of Pleasanton.  

 

Alternative Two:  

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff for more 

information as needed. 

   

Alternative Three:  

Disapprove the proposal. Disapproval would statutorily prohibit the initiation of a similar proposal for 

one year unless a request for reconsideration is filed and approved by the Commission within 30 days. 

 

Recommendation 

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  

 

 

123



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 12 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

4 | P a g e  

 

Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 

 

Attachments: 
1. Vicinity Map 

2. Application Materials 

3. Draft Resolution  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

124



Attachment 1

125



126



Attachment 2

127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



Attachment 3 

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

  

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX 

  

APPROVAL OF OUT OF AREA SERVICE AGREEEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

PLEASANTON AND 280 OAK LANE FOR THE PROVISION OF WATER SERVICES 

 

WHEREAS, the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission, hereinafter referred to as 

the “Commission,” is responsible for regulating boundary changes affecting cities and special 

districts under the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000; and  

 

WHEREAS, a Resolution of Application (Resolution No. 19-1125 dated December 3, 2019) 

was filed with the Executive Officer of the Alameda Local Agency Commission by the City 

Council of Pleasanton, pursuant to Title 5, Division 3, commencing with Section 56000 of the 

California Government Code; 

 

WHEREAS, said resolution is for the purpose of requesting approval of an out of area service 

agreement (OASA) to extend water services outside the City of Pleasanton’s jurisdictional 

boundary to the property located at 280 Oak Lane (946-4436-018-00). 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer has reviewed the proposal and prepared a report with 

recommendations; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer’s report and recommendations on the proposal have been 

presented to the Commission in the manner provided by law; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Commission considered all factors required by law under Government Code 

Section 56133 and adopted local policies and procedures;  

 

WHEREAS, a public meeting was held on January 16, 2020, Alameda LAFCO heard and 

received all oral and written protests, objections, and evidence which were made, presented or 

filed and all persons present were given an opportunity to appear and be heard with respect to any 

matter pertaining to said application.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE 

AND ORDER as follows:  

 

1.  The Commission’s determinations on the proposal incorporate the information and analysis 

provided in the Executive Officer’s written report presented on January 16, 2020.  

 

2.  The Commission serves as the responsible agency under the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) in considering the impacts of the proposal. That, the Commission 

independently concurs with the City of Pleasanton’s findings that the action is a project 

under CEQA, but exempt from further CEQA review under the California Public 

Resources Code Section 15061(b)(3).   

 

152



Attachment 3 

3. The agreement will permit the provision of water services to the property located at 280 

Oak Lane in the unincorporated area of Alameda County.  

   

4.  The service agreement will not facilitate a change of land use, promote or induce growth 

on the property or surrounding properties, or facilitate the delivery of other types of 

services or functions; and  

 

5. That the request of the City of Pleasanton for an out of area service agreement between the 

City of Pleasanton and the subject property owners for the provision of water service to the 

property located at 280 Oak Lane (946-4436-018-00) in the unincorporated area of Alameda 

County is hereby approved and authorized subject to any and all terms and conditions as set 

forth in the service agreement between the City of Pleasanton and the subject property owners.  

 

6. As part of conditional approval of the OASA, the property owners located at 280 Oak Lane 

Way must sign a pre-annexation agreement with the City of Pleasanton.  

 

7. As allowed under Government Code 56107, the Commission authorizes the Executive 

Officer to make non-substantive corrections to this resolution to address any technical 

defect, error, irregularity, or omission.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission on 

January 16, 2020 by the following vote: 

 

AYES:   

 

NOES: 

 

ABSTAIN:  

 

ABSENT:  

 

 

APPROVED:      ATTEST: 

 

          

 

__________________     __________________  

Scott Haggerty       Rachel Jones 

Chair       Executive Officer 

153



Blank for Photocopying 

154



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
1221 Oak Street, Suite 555 
Oakland, California 94612 
T:  510.272.3894 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

John Marchand, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Jerry Thorne, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
David Haubert, Alternate  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Tom Pico, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Scott Haggerty, Chair  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Richard Valle, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 
 

AGENDA REPORT 
January 16, 2020   

Item No. 13 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   
FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Progress Report | Municipal Service Review on Water, Wastewater, Flood 

Control and Stormwater Services  
 
 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will receive a progress report from QK 
Associates on its countywide municipal service review for water, wastewater, flood control and 
stormwater services. The presentation will provide an update on work to date and outline on a 
completion deadline. The report is being presented for Commission discussion and feedback. A 
PowerPoint presentation will be provided at the time of the regular meeting.  
 
Information 
 
At the Commission’s May 7, 2018 regular meeting, QK Associates, Inc. was awarded a service contract 
to perform work associated with Alameda LAFCO’s second cycle of the State-mandated sphere of 
influence updates and related municipal service reviews. This item provides notice of work to date by 
the firm in preparing the calendared study.  
 
Commission Review 
 
The item is being presented for information. QK Associates will provide a verbal report and 
PowerPoint presentation summarizing the work to date and as well as highlighting some of the 
anticipated policy issues underlining the study. Commission feedback is welcomed and will be 
utilized by staff and QK Associates in returning at a future meeting a draft municipal service 
review for approval.  
 
  
Attachments: none 

155



Blank for Photocopying 

156



     
\  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
1221 Oak Street, Suite 555 
Oakland, California 94612 
T:  510.272.3894 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

John Marchand, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Jerry Thorne, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
David Haubert, Alternate  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Tom Pico, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Scott Haggerty, Chair  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Richard Valle, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT  

January 16, 2020  

Item No. 15a 
 

TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Current and Pending Proposals 
 

 

The Commission will receive a report identifying active proposals on file with the Alameda Local 

Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) as required under statute. The report also identifies 

pending local agency proposals to help telegraph future workload. The report is being presented 

to the Commission for information only.   

 

Information / Discussion 

 

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (“CKH”) delegates 

LAFCOs with regulatory and planning duties to coordinate the formation and development of local 

government agencies and their municipal services. This includes approving or disapproving boundary 

changes involving the formation, expansion, merger, and dissolution of cities, towns and special 

districts as well as sphere of influence amendments. It also includes overseeing outside service 

extensions. Proposals involving jurisdictional changes filed by landowners or registered voters must 

be put on the agenda as information items before any action may considered by LAFCO at a subsequent 

meeting.  

 

Current Proposals | Approved and Awaiting Term Completions 

 

The following proposals were previously approved by Alameda LAFCO, but remain active given that 

not all approval terms established by the membership have been met. CKH provides applicants one 

calendar year to complete approval terms or receive extension approvals before the proposals are 

automatically terminated.   

 

▪ Reorganization of East Bay Municipal Utility District and City of Hayward  

The Commission has approved a proposal filed by the East Bay Municipal Utility District 

(EBMUD) involving 273 parcels within the City of Hayward and the unincorporated 

communities of San Lorenzo and Fairview totaling 269.8 acres. The purpose of the proposal 

is to align EBMUD’s existing service area with its jurisdictional boundary and formalize 

public water services provided within the affected territory to the correct service provider.  

The Commission approved the proposal without amendments on November 11, 2018 and 

subsequently granted a one-year time extension at its September 12, 2019 meeting.  Terms  

 

157



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 15a 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

remain outstanding as to date and therefore remains active.   

 

▪ Annexation of 4592 Tesla Road et al to the City of Livermore   

The Commission has approved a proposal filed by the City of Livermore involving three 

unincorporated parcels totaling 79.4 acres. The purpose of the proposal is to stop the 

discharge of industrial and domestic waste due to a failing septic system and to alleviate 

budding environmental health concerns. The Commission approved the proposal with 

amendments on September 20, 2018 and subsequently granted a one-year time extension 

at its September 12, 2019 meeting. Terms remain outstanding as to date and therefore 

remains active.   

 

▪ Annexation of Bayside Newark | Union Sanitary District   

The Commission has received a proposal by developer (Lennar Homes) on behalf of the 

affected landowners requesting annexation approval of 297 parcels located within the city 

of Newark to the Union Sanitary District. The affected territory is approximately 57.5 acres 

in size and is currently in the development of 2,500 mixed-use housing units. The purpose 

of the annexation is to provide wastewater services to a planned residential area. The 

Commission approved the proposal without amendments on May 9, 2019. Terms remain 

outstanding as to date and therefore remains active. 

 

Current Proposals | Under Review and Awaiting Hearing  

 

There are currently no active proposals on file with the Commission that remains under administrative 

review and awaits a hearing as to date of this report.  

 

Pending Proposals  

 

There are no potential new proposals at the moment that staff believes may be submitted to the 

Commission from local agencies based on ongoing discussions with proponents within the last two 

years.   

 

The Commission is invited to discuss the item and provide direction to staff on any related matter as 

needed for future discussion and or action.  
 

 

Attachments: none 

158



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
1221 Oak Street, Suite 555 
Oakland, California 94612 
T:  510.272.3894 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

John Marchand, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Jerry Thorne, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
David Haubert, Alternate  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Tom Pico, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Scott Haggerty, Chair  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Richard Valle, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

January 16, 2020   

Item No. 15b 

 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   

FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Progress Report on 2019-2020 Work Plan  
 

 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will receive a progress report on 

accomplishing specific projects as part of its adopted work plan for 2019-2020. The report is being 

presented to the Commission to formally receive and file as well as provide direction to staff as needed.  

 

Background 

 

Alameda LAFCO’s current strategic plan was adopted following a planning session on September 22, 

2017. The strategic plan is anchored by seven key priorities that collectively orient the Commission to 

proactively fulfill its duties and responsibilities under the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act of 2000 in a 

manner responsive to local conditions and needs. These goals and their attendant objectives, which 

premise individual implementation strategies, are summarized below.  

 

1. Island Annexations 

2. Water Supply, Availability and Alternative Options 

3. Accommodate Population Growth while Maintaining Quality of Life 

4. Agriculture and Open Space Preservation and Urban Growth Boundaries  

5. Climate Change Adaptation 

6. LAFCO Independence and Other Operational Improvements 

7. Comprehensive Study of Unincorporated Areas Focusing on Disadvantaged Unincorporated 

Communities (DUCs) 

On May 9, 2019, Alameda LAFCO adopted the current fiscal year work plan at a noticed public 

hearing. The work plan is divided into two distinct categories – statutory and administrative – with one 

of three priority rankings: high; moderate; or low. The underlying intent of the work plan is to serve 

as a management tool to allocate Commission resources in an accountable and transparent manner over 

the corresponding 12-month period that pulls from the seven key priorities in the Commission’s 2018-

2020 Strategic Plan. Further, while it is a standalone document, the work plan should be reviewed in 

relationship to the adopted operating budget given the planned goals and activities are facilitated and 

or limited accordingly.  

 

 

159



Alameda LAFCO 
January 16, 2020 Meeting 

Agenda Item No. 15b 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 

The item provides the Commission with a status update on two-dozen plus targeted projects established 

for the fiscal year with a specific emphasis on the “top ten” projects that represent the highest priority 

to complete during the fiscal year as determined by the membership. This includes identifying the 

projects already completed, underway, or pending in the accompanying attachment. The report and 

referenced attachment are being presented for the Commission to formally receive and file while also 

providing additional direction to staff as appropriate.  

 

Discussion 

 

The Commission has initiated work on thirteen of the two-dozen plus projects and has completed five 

projects included in the adopted work plan. This includes the completion of high priority projects and 

highlighted by conducting the 2017-2018 audit, the dissolution of inactive special districts, and 

adopting a study schedule. Other notable items underway include the general municipal service review 

on water, wastewater, and stormwater services, GIS mapping project, and an informational report on 

disadvantaged unincorporated communities to be presented at the Commission’s March regular 

meeting.  

 

Alternatives for Action  

 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  
 

Alternative One (Recommended):  
Accept and file the report as presented.  
 
Alternative Two:  

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff for more 
information as needed.  
 
Recommendation 

 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  
 

 
Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 

  

Attachments: 

1. 2019-2020 Work Plan  

160



P

U

P

P

P

U

P

P

P

U

U

P

P

U

P

P

Status Notations:          C: Completed               U: Underway        P: Pending

User Friendly Publication Identifying and Summarizing Local Government Agencies and Services in Alameda County

Continue Project to Digitize LAFCO Records

Enhanece and Clarify LAFCO Authority and Powers to Perform its State-Mandated Responsibilities

Communicate LAFCO's Mission and Goals to the Community

Evaluate LAFCO's Mission and Goals Relative to Local Conditions; Identify Strategies to Achieve Shared Objectives

CDA to Create a LAFCO GIS Layer for All Local Agencies under LAFCO Purview

Establish New Agency Logo for Branding (Website, Publications, etc.)

Map all Unincorporated Islands and Examine Island Annexation Implementation Issues in Alameda County

Last MSR conducted in 2013; Open space land preservation

Status Report on District Activites

Periodical review of existing policies relatiev to practices and trends, and determine whether changes are 

appropriate to better reflect current preferences

Improve Efficiency and Effectiveness of Application Process

Special Report on Service Delivery Feasability

Host Alameda County Special District Association Meeting

LAFCO Annual Report on Status of County

GIS Mapping Project

LAFCO Agency Logo

Local Agency Directory 

Informational Report on Fairview Fire Protection District

Policy Review on Agricultural Protection and Out of Area Service Agreements

Master Property Tax Exchange Agreement

Informational Report on Remen Tract

Digital Archiving

CALAFCO Legislative Committee

New

New

New

New

Prepare Informational Report on JPAs

LAFCO Presentations

Update Applicatinon Packet

Prepare Informational Report on Unincorporated Islands

Alameda County Resource Conservation MSR

New

New

Rollover

Rollover

Rollover

New

Administrative

Administrative

Administrative

New

New

New

Rollover

New

Rollover

Statutory

Administrative

Administrative

Administrative

Administrative

Administrative

Low

Low

Administrative

Administrative

Administrative

Administrative

Statutory

Administrative

Administrative

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

26

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Low

Low

20

21

22

23

24

25

14

15

16

17

18

19

U

ALAMEDA LAFCO WORKPLAN | 2019-2020

11

12

13

Post Enactment of SB 1266; Enhance Repository on Local Government Services

Introductory Overview of LAFCO's Duties and Responsibilities to Boards, Councils, Community Groups

Current Application Dated; Make User Friendly

Status

P

C

U

P

C

C

C

C

U

10 Moderate Statutory Rollover Informational Report on Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities Develop and Implement Special Study of Unincorporated Areas focusing on DUCs; Consider Policies

9 Moderate Statutory Rollover Sphere Update for City of Pleasanton Implement Planning Functions; Update SOIs of Local Government Agencies; Cities MSR

8 Moderate Statutory New General MSR on Fire Protection and Emergency Services Second MSR on Fire and Emergency Services sine 2006 | Address Shared Opportunities

7 Moderate Statutory New Study Schedule Update Improve Efficiency and Effectivenss of Commission Operations and Transparency

6 Moderate Statutory New Special District Member Elections Conduct Special District Member Elections to Ensure LAFCO Representation

5 Moderate Statutory New Dissolutions of Inactive Special Districts Implement Regulatory Functions; SB 448

4 Moderate Administrative New 2017-2018 Audit Verify Fund Balance; First Audit in Ten Years

3 High Administrative New Staff Recruitment, Placement and Training Recruitment and Training of LAFCO Commission Clerk and Analyst

2 High Statutory Rollover General MSR on Water, Wastewater, and Stormwater Services First Service Specific MSR since 2006 | Address Infrastructure Needs and Efficiencies and Sustainability

1 High Administrative Rollover MOU Update with County of Alameda Update existing MOU with the County of Alameda to reflect current agency relationships/needs

Priority Urgency Type Status Project Key Issues

161



Blank for Photocopying 

162



163


	01_16_20_Agenda
	01_16_20_AgendaItemNo6a_Minutes
	01_16_20_AgendaItemNo6b_Minutes
	01_16_20_AgendaItemNo7_Budget
	01_16_20_AgendaItemNo8_AHS_Report
	01_16_20_AgendaItemNo9_ProtestHearing_Results
	01_16_20_AgendaItemNo10_27398FairviewAve
	01_16_20_AgendaItemNo11_354VirginiaWay
	01_16_20_AgendaItemNo12_280OakLane
	01_16_20_AgendaItemNo13_QK_MSR
	01_16_20_AgendaItemNo15a_Proposals
	01_16_20_AgendaItemNo15b_Workplan
	01_16_20_AgendaItemNo15c_CALAFCO



